It is expected that a Quorum of the Personnel Committee, Board of Public Works, and Common Council will be
attending this meeting: (although it is not expected that any official action of any of those bodies will be taken)

CITY OF MENASHA
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Third Floor Council Chambers

140 Main Street, Menasha
October 6, 2014
6:30 PM
or immediately following Common Council
AGENDA

A. CALL TO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL/EXCUSED ABSENCES

C. MINUTES TO APPROVE
1. Administration Committee, 9/2/14

D. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
1. Review and Accept 2013 City of Menasha Audit Report (Dave Maccoux, Schenck).
2. Joint Powers Agreement Winnebago County Emergency 911 System, Dec. 1, 2014 -
Nov. 30, 2015.
3. Amendment to Listing Contract with Newmark Grumm Pfefferle for 901 Airport Road.

E. ADJOURNMENT

"Menasha is committed to its diverse population. Our Non-English speaking population and those with disabilities
are invited to contact the Menasha City Clerk at 967-3603 24-hours in advance of the meeting for the City to
arrange special accommodations.”


http://www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov/COM/Clerk/Administration_Committee/2014/Admin%20Draft%20Minutes%209-2-14.pdf
http://www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov/COM/Clerk/Administration_Committee/2014/02380-2013-Financial%20Statements-2013%20City%20of%20Menasha-FS%20SA-10012014.pdf
http://www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov/COM/Clerk/Administration_Committee/2014/Joint%20Powers%20Agreement%202015.pdf
http://www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov/COM/Clerk/Administration_Committee/2014/Joint%20Powers%20Agreement%202015.pdf
http://www.cityofmenasha-wi.gov/COM/Clerk/Administration_Committee/2014/Amend%20to%20Listing%20Contract%20901%20Airport%209-2014.pdf

cvorvewsn  DRAFT

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Third Floor Council Chambers
140 Main Street, Menasha
September 2, 2014
MINUTES

. CALL TO ORDER
Meeting called to order by Chairman Nichols at 8:00 p.m.

. ROLL CALL/EXCUSED ABSENCES

PRESENT: Aldermen Zelinski, Benner, Nichols, Taylor, Sevenich, Langdon, Keehan
EXCUSED: Alderman Englebert

ALSO PRESENT: Mayor Merkes, CA/HRD Captain, PC Styka, DPW Radtke, CDD Keil,
ASD Steeno, Clerk Galeazzi

. MINUTES TO APPROVE

1. Administration Committee, 8/18/14

Moved by Ald. Zelinski, seconded by Ald. Keehan to approve minutes.
Motion carried on voice vote.

. COMMUNICATIONS
1. 2014 Health Risk Assessment Results
No action or discussion.

. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

1. 0O-24-14 An Ordinance Amending Title 2, Chapter 1 of the Code of Ordinances
(Polling Places) (Introduced by Alderman Nichols).

Clerk Galeazzi explained the polling place for Aldermanic Districts 1 & 2 for the

November 4, 2014 election will need to be changed from the Senior Center to Trinity

Lutheran School due to the renovation of the Senior Center.

Moved by Ald. Keehan, seconded by Ald. Langdon to recommend to Common Council
0-24-14 An Ordinance Amending Title 2, Chapter 1 of the Code of Ordinances
(Polling Places)

Motion carried on roll call 7-0.

2. CVMIC Update (CA/HRD Captain)

CA/HRD Captain gave an overview of the Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company
(CVMIC) Professional Development and Training Program she attended. She is working
with CVMIC staff to have someone speak at a future Administration Committee meeting.

General discussion ensued on 2015 insurance premium projections, volunteer policy,
liability dividend payouts, changes in coverage, increase reserves for claims.

. ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Ald. Langdon, seconded by Ald. Taylor to adjourn at 8:13 p.m.
Motion carried on voice vote.

Respectfully submitted by Deborah A. Galeazzi, WCMC, City Clerk
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2013
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i AR S BEICH MORE.

INDEPERDENT AUDITORS REPGRT

Toihe Honorable Mevor
and Members ofthe City Council
City of Menashe, Wisconsin

Report onibe Financhsl Staftements

Ve have sudited the accompanying financial stelements of the governmenial adtivitiss, the business-yps
activities, the discretely presenied componeri unil, each major fund, anc the aggregste remaining fund
information of the City of Menasha, Wisconsin, (the City"y as of antd for the vear ended December 31, 2013, and
the relaied notes o the financia sigtements, which collectively-cormprise the City's basicTinancinl sigtements as
fisted in the table of contants.

Menagement's Roesponsibiity for the Financial Siatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements iy accordance
with scoounting principles generally accepted in the Uniied Slales of America; this includes the design,
implementation, gnd maintenance of iernal sonired relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that gre'fres Trom-mstedal misstaternen, whether dustofraud or error.

Auditors” Besponsibility

Cur reaponsibility 18 to express opinions on these financial siatements besed on our saudit. We conducied our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally geceptied ivihe United States of Americs and the standards
applicable 1o finandcial audils contained in Goverament Audifing Blandards, issead by the Comptroller Genersl of
the United States. Those standards require thet we plan and perforn e audit t© oblain reasonable assurance
ahoutwhsther the fingncial statements are free of material missiatement.

An audit invoives performing prosedures 1o obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
finencial sistements. The procedures zelected depend on the suditors’ udgment; including the assessment of the
risks of material missiatement of the financial siatements, whether due o fraud or errgr. I making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider intemal control relevant 1o the Gily's preparation and fair presentation of the
financiz! statersents inorder to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the ciroumstances, but not forthe
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectvensss of the Ciy's mlernal contral. Accordingly, we axpress no
such opinion, An audit alse inclutes sesluating the approprisieness of accounting policies used and the
remsonableness of significant accourting esiimates made by management, @3 well as evalusting the oversll
prasentation of the financist siatemenis,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaired iz suflicient and appropriate v provide 8 basis or our audit
opinions.

Opinions

in our opinfon, the fingncial statements referred {o above present fairly, in all material reéspecis, the regpediive
financial position of the govermmenial aclivilies, the business-type aclivities, the discretely presentsd component
unil, gach major fund, and the sggregate remaining fund information of the Clty as of December 31, 2013, and the
respeciive changes infinandal position angd, where applicable, cash fiows thereof and e budgstary somperison
for the general fund for the year then ended in eccordance with accounting principles generally accepied in the
Uinited States of America.

s
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Emphasis of Malters

As described in Note D12, on March 26, 2014, a settlement was reached in the Fox River clean up project. The
City was responsibie for $262,500 of the seitlement.

Ag also desoribad In Mole D12, on June 5, 2014 the City enfered info & purchase and development ggreemert to
fransfer tothe buyer theformer steam ulility property.

Other Matlers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles gensgrally sccepied in the Uniled Sizes of America reguire that the management's
dizcussion-and anatysis, the schedule of funding orogress snd the schedule of employer contribulions on pages 3
through & antt 52 and 54 be prefented to supplement the basic financial statements. Sush information, aithough
not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Stantierds Bosre, who
considers # o be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financisl statements in an
epproprigie operationsl, economic, or hisiorica! cortext. We have appiled ceriain limied procedures lo the
reguired supplementary iformation In sccordance with auditing standards generally acospted in the Uniled
States of America, which consisted of inguiries of managemant aboul the methods of preparing the information
and compating the information for sonsistency with managemeant's responses 10 our incuitdes, the basic-financial
siatements, and other knowledge we obiained duting our audil of the basic financial stalements. We o not
express an ppinien or provide any asstrance on the informatiorn because the limited procedures-do not provide us
with sufficient evidenceto-express:an opinion or provide any assurancs.

Other information

Our auditwas congucted for the purpose offorming golnisns on thefinancial statements thet collectivelv comprise
the City's basic financial statements, Thie financial information:listed in the table of gontents as supplemeniary
infformation and the schedoie of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of siate financial assiglance, as
required by U.B. Office of Management and Budget:-Circuler A-133, Audits of States. Local Governiaents, and
Non-Profit Grganizations, ancg the Stafe Shigle Audit Guidelines issusd by the Wisconsin Depzrtment of
Administration are presented for purposes of additional analysis aad are not a required part of the basic financial
statemenis. )

The supplementary information and schedules ¢f expendiiures of federal swards and state financisl assistance
are the responsibility of management and were derived from.and relate directly io the underlving accounting and
other records used o prepare the basic financial stetements. Such information has been subiected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financisl statements and certain addiional procedures,
ircluding comparing and recongiling such information directly to the underlying sccounting and wiher records used
0 prepare the basic financial siatements or o the basic fingncial statemants themseives, and oiher addiionsl
proceduraes in accordance with auditing standards generaily aoccepted in the Unied States of America. In our
apinion, the supplementary information, the schedules of expenditures of federal awards ang the schedude of
state financial essistance are falfy stated, in gl materistrespects, inrélation fo he basic financial siglements a5 2
whote.

Other Regoting Reguired by Government Sudiiing Standards

in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued ouwr reporldated September 30, 2014,
on owur gonsideration of the City's internal control over financizal reporting and on sur tests of its compliance with
vartain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grani agreements and other matters. Ths purpose of that
report ig o desoribe the sceope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and comgliance and the
resutts of that testing, anll nol to provide an opinlon on the intermal control over financial reporting or on
compliance.  That report i an integral partt of an ewdll performed In acoordance with Sovernmend Auditing
Btandards in considering the Citv's internag! cortrol-over financial reparting end compliance.

gt S
Certified Public Acoountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
Saptember 33, 20114
o
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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City of Menasha, Wisconsin
Wanagement’s Discussion ang Analvsis

As management of ihe City of Menasha, Wisconsin, we offer readers of the City's basic financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financiyl activities of the City for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2013,

Financial Hiohliohis

¢« The City's assets and deferred outflows excesded its liabilities and deferred inflows as of December 31, 2043
by 3406 milion (net position). Of this amount, $3,980.218 In-the govermmental activities (unrestricied nat
position) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligetions o citizens and oreditors.  The unrestricted nst
position of the business-type activities was & deficit $7.206.794.

= The City's total net position increased by §2.7 million {increase of $.6 million in governmental sctivities and an
incregse of $2.1 million in business-iype achivities) before ar impairment foss of $10.4 million related 1o the
steam utility.

+  Property taxeslevied toeTinahce geners: City operations totaled $11,447 874, an increase of $85,727 from the
prior yesr. Taxincremenis generated by the Clty's eleven tax incrementai districts totaled §7.867,661.

@ As of December 31, 2073, the City's governmental funds reporied combined ending fund hatances of
$5.413,668, an increase $1,478 895 in comparison with the prior vear.

= As of December 31, 2013, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $2 0 million, or approximately
12.7% of total-general fund expenditures. The general fund balance increased $62.824 during 2013, The
City hat & positive expenditure budgst variance of $3639,054 for the current vear.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis s intended to serve as an introductionio the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financizl statements are comprised of three components; 1} government-wide financial siatements,
2} fund financial siatements, and 3} noles io the basic financial stetements. This report also containe other
supplemeniary information in-addifion {o'the basic financial siatements themselves,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designecd to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Clty's finances, in & manner similar {6 2 private-sector business,

The statement of net posftion presents information on all of the Jity's assels, deferred outfiowsfinflows of
resources and liabilities, with the difference reportec as net posifion. Over time, increases or decreases in nat
pusiion may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The staterment of aclivities presents. information showing how the City's net position changed during the maost
racant vear. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlving event giving rise to-the change
oceurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and sxpenses are reporied in thie
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., sarned but unused
vacation lsave).

Both of the government-wide financiat statements distinguish functions of the Cily that are principally supported
by taxes and mtergovemmental revenues (governmenial activities) from other functions that are infended io
recover @il or & significant porfion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type aclivities). The
governmertal activities of the City inciude general government, public safety, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation, and conservation and development. The business<type activities of the City
include Menasha Ulilities {provides eleciric, water, steam and telecommunication services io City residents), the
sewage treatment services and storm water management.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pagss 10 - 12 of this report,

3
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Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounis that is used fo maintain conirol over
resources that have been segregsied for specific activities or objectives. The Cily, like other siafe and local
governments, uses fund accounting o ensure and demonsirate complisnce with finance-related legsl
reguirements. Al of the funds of the Cliy can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds,

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used {o account for essentially the same funclions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, untike the government-wide
financial statemerits, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-lerm inflows and outflows of
spendabie-resources, as well as on balances of spendabls rescurces available at the end of the fiscal vear. Such
information magy be usaful inevaluating the City's near-term financing requirements.

i is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities it the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may belter understand
the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Boih the governmentizl fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund ststement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconcilistionjo facilitete this comparisan between governmental funds.and governmenisal aciivities.

The City maintains 32 individual governmental funds. information is presenied separately in the governmenial
fund balance sheet and in the governmenial fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund and debl service fund, both of which are consideraed to be mgjor funds, Data from
the other 30 governmental funds are combined into & single, aggregated preseniation. individua! fund data for
esach of these nonmajoer governmenial funds is provided in the form of combining staterments slsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annua! appropriated budget for s governmental funde, As part of the basic governmental
fund financlal statements, budgetary comparison siaiements have been provided for the genergl fuad io
demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmenta! fund financigl statements can be found on pages 13 - 17 ofthis report.

Proprietary funds. The Cily maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used o
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water, steam and felegommunications utiliies (Menasha
Utliities} and its sewerage system and storm water operations, frternal service funds are an accounting device
used to acocumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses an internal
service funds o account Hability and dental insurance claims and the Citv's garage. Because these services
predominantly benefits governmantal rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities:in the government-wide financial statements.

Froprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statemenis, only in mors
detail. The proprietary fund Tinancial statements provide separate information for the Menashs Ulilities which is
considered 40 be @ major fund of the City and the sewage treatment operations, The City's intermal service funds
arevombined inlo & single; aggregeted presentation in the propristary fund financial statemenis,

The basic:proprigtary fund financial statemertls can be found on pages 18 - 20 ol this repori.

Fldusiary fund. The City accounts for tax coliections of other taxing entities within an agency fund. The fidugiary
fund financial statemenis can be found on page 271 of this report.

Hotes fo the basic financis! statements. The noles provide addiional information that s essentiat o & full
understanting of the data provided in the governmentwide and fund financial staiements. The notes 1o the basic
financial slatements can be found on pagss 25 - 52 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred o earlier in conneclion with nonmajor governmental
funds ere presentad immediately following netes to the basic financial statements.

4
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Governmeni=wide Financial Analveis

Met position. As noted sarbier, net position may serve over iime as g uselul indicator of a government’s financial
wosition.  In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows of resuurces sxeeeded lishilites and daferred
infiows of rescurces by $40.6 million at the close of 20712,

Tty of Menasha, Wisconsin's Net Position
{in thousands of doliars!
Goverimenial 5 Businass-dype
Activities ' Activities _ Totals
2012 b 2012 | 2012 [ 201 2010 | 2012

[{Current and other assels % 24848 % 254BE & 18710 0§ 15087 & 49888 5 40570
Capils! aseals 33.525 33,787 54,33% 65808 57 884 g& 295

Total Assetls BLATZ 50,276 71,048 £0,688 128 807 138,685
Deferred puffiows of resourses
TowerPainiing - - 54 81 54 o
Long-term liabilifes outstanding 22,485 23618 47 115 48,503 89,570 721214
Oiher kiabilities 1,228 1225 5.87¢ £.0a7 8204 8227

Total iiabilities 23,680 24842 54,084 55 500 7774 80.343
Bmlerred irflows of resources
Property faxes 11,236 11488 ] - - 11,236 11468 |
MNat Position

Net investment incepital assals 13078 11,975 2 BR 2FTS 34,300 33.748

Restricted 6,488 BT Z.804 3,294 §.482 5,011

Unrestricted 3,841 5273 (7.207} 215 (3218 5 488

Total Net Position $ 23557 & 22865 % 7000 5 DEIA0 5 40888 § 48245

By far the largest portion of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g. land, buildings,
machinery and ecuipment, infrastructure, efc) less any related debl used {o acquire those assets that & stilf
putstanding, The City uses these: capital assets o provice services o citizens; conssguently, these assets are
not -avaitable for future spanding.  Although, the City's investmantin its capital assets is reported net of related
gebt, itshould be noted thal-the respurces needed to repay this debt must be provisad from other sources. since
the capital assetv themselves cannot be used to Hguldate these lighilities.

Arnadditional porion of the Tiy's et position represents resources thal are subiect {o-exismal restrictions on how
they may be ysed and vonsist of $1.8 million restricled for community development foans, $2.7 million restricted
tor debt service, $4.0 million restricted for capital prajects, $.65 million restricted for special revenus purposes and
0.4 mitlion restricted {for lease obligations. The remaining balance of unresiricted net position (4.0 million) may
bewssd tomeet the Clity's ongoing obligations to ciizens and crediiors.

5

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 10



Change in net pesitlon,

A summary of the City's change in nat position foliows:

{in thousands of doillars)

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Thange in Net Position

Governmental Business-ype
Aotivities Aptivides Totals
2013 E 2017 2013 E 2012 2013 ] 2017
Revenues
ngrém Revenuas
Charges for services S o5t § 2891 § S4899 % 55506 £ 57850 § 58317
Operating grants and contributions 874 g7% w - a74 g70
Capitad grants and conlfibubions 188 125 G0E 497 301 542
General Revenues :
Property taxes 11 448 11,562 - - 14 848 19,867
Dther laxes 97 186 - - 187 1851
srants and conftibutions fiot
restricted to specific programs &477 4,118 - - 4177 4,118
Cither 367 584 7 77 438 761
Totsl Revenues 20012 20,256 54873 56,000 4 885 76,256
Dapenses
General government 1,230 1,248 - - 1230 1,249
Public safety 7,742 7.878 - - 7748 TB78
Public works.and sanidlion 2774 4400 - - 3,774 400
Heaith and human sevices 863 855 - - Be3 855
Cuiture and regreation 3478 3,208 - - 3178 3208 |
Consarvation and development 1,568 874 - - 1,568 £74)
interest on long-term debi | 7T 1,048 - - 777 1,046
Electric - 45640 45,501 A5 B4AY #EBOT
Steam - - 6848 808 545 809
Water - - 5,800 3767 3B90 3,767 |
Telecommunications - - 57 B5 57 85
Bewage treatment = = 1,566 1,734 1.556 1,734
- Stormwater Uility - - 1,220 1057 1220 1057
Total Expenses 19,134 19,010 53,020 54,033 72.154 73.043
Change i Nat:-Position Before Transfers 878 1,246 1,853 1,867 2,734 3,298
Transfers {286} {4593 286 455 o -
Change in'Net FPosifion 582 a7 2138 2426 2431 3,213
Forgivensss of idebt - - - 54728 - 5428
Loss on-impairment of asseis - - {10490 - 04 -
Erior period adjugiment - t895) - - - {89%
Change in acceunting principle - {168 - - - {168}
Net Posiiion - January ™ 22,965 23,245 25280 17,425 48.245 40,671
Net Position - December 31 § 23557 § 22985 5 17008 § 25780 & 40588 § 48245

The narraiive that follows considers the operafions of governmentat and business-ype aclivities separately.

Governmenial activitise.

The change in net position for 2015 was an increase of 58 milion. The above

transfer represenis tha payment in lisu of taxes thal Menasha Utilles pays o the Cly, less & transfer to the

Menasha Utilities for debt refirement.

Business-iype activities.

The change in net pesiion for 2013 was an increase of $2.1 million pricr to an

impairment joss of $10.4 million. Menashe Uilities portion of the increase in net position was $1.7 million, prior to

the impairment loss of $18.4 million.

B
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Financial Anzlysis of the Citv's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiiance with finance-related legal
reguirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on nearerm infiows,
outflows, and halances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
reguiremeants. in particular, unassigned fund balarce may serve as a useftl measure of the Ciy's net resources
available for spending at the end of thefiseal year.

As of December 31, 2013, the City's governmental funds reporied combineg anding fund balances of $5 4 million,
an increase of §1.5 million in comparisen with the prior year. 552 million of the fund baiance is nonspendabie or
restricted to indicate that it is not available-for new spending. 5.4 million is assigned, indicating there is a specific
purpose for the revenuss samed inthese funds. The remaining fund batancs is a deficl of 5.7 milion.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current vear, unassigned fund balance
of the general fund was $1.982.408, while total fund balance incressed fo $2,426,547. As 2 measurs of the
gengrat fund's liguidity, it may be usefu! to compare both unRassigned fund balance andtotal fund baiance to total
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 12.7% of fotal general fund expenditures, while total
fund balance represents 15:5% of that same amount,

The City's general fund balence increased $62,824 during e current yearas positive expenditure variances of
§639,054 helpad overcome the ariticipated budgested variance.of $170,000.

The debt service fund is used io retire iong-terin debt releled to governmenital activities snd ennually levies
sufficient taxes. special assessment coliections or anticipated transfers from the Gity's tax incremental districts to
relire all obligations as they come-due. The dettservice fund balance fotals $1,460 069, an increase:of $1534 000
from theprior vear.

Froprietary funds. The City's proprietery funds provide the same type of information found in the City's
government-wide financial statements, but in more detall.

Total net position of Menasha Wlites at the end of the vear amounted to $2 968 305 with 50.0233.848 recorded in
net investmentin-capital assets, 748,488 restricted for debt refirement, $897,381 restricted for a tease abligation,
£1,348,038 restricted for plant replacement and & negative 9,058,454 as urresiricted. The fund gxparienced an
increase in net position of $1,747,037, plus its foss on impairment of assets of $10 408,888,

Total net position of the sewage treatment operation @t the end o7 the year amounted 1o $4.854,230. Included in
net position s $33,675317 recorded in net investment in capitsl -essels and $578.0%8 as unresticted. The fund
experiensad an ingrease in net position of $495,555.

The City crealed a stormwater ulility in 2009 by transferring asssts from the governmental activities, Total net
position of the stormwater Gtility operation at the end of the year amouniad to $9,388,634. included in net position
is 58,512,881 recorded in net investment in capital assets and $872843 as unrestricied. The fund experienced
decreass in net position of $104,277.

General Pund Budoetary Highlishis

During the year, actual revenues were less than budgeted revenues by §126,387 with intergovernmenital charges
providing the major variation ($140,147). Actual expenditures were less than budgsated expendilures by $639,054
with significant savings i the pulific safety area ($249,731).
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Capital Assel and Debt Adminisiration

Capital assets. The City's invesiment in capital assels for its governmental and business-type activities ag of
December 31, 2013 amounis to $87.8 million (ne! of accumulated depreciation). This investiment in capital assets
includes kand, land improvements, bulldings, meachinery and equipment, vehicies. public domain infrastructure
(highways, sidewalks, parking faciliies}, and construction in progress. The total decrease in the City's investment
in-capital agsets for the current year-was $11.5 million or 11.6% lower than last year.

Wajer capital asseis acguired, construcied or deleted during the year include:

Govermnmental Activities
e increased-accumulated depreciation accourted for the mejority of ithie decreass i totel veplkal assels for
the governmental activilies.

Business-Type Activilise
¢ During 2013, Menashe Ulililes recorded & loss on impeirment of assels of $104080558 rslated 1o the
steam-uiility assels.

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Capital Assets
tnet of accumuiated deoreciation)
Governmenial Activiies - Business-lype Activitieg ) Totals
2002 1 p012 0tz | zotee Mz a2
Lant % OGABSETE § S.040876 F 2510386 5 251086 5 11674242 % 91,551,082
Builings 12028633 12,000,678 BB60E33 B:644.927 20,680,186 PB4, 503
fmprovements otherthan
bulidirgs - - A9, 704,938 E7.079, 747 46702838 47 879,711
Machinety.and equipment 8828844 BA803,534 17728778 17 B8 08 26 558,502 5 074B18
 Infrastruciure 2BB61.808 28,342,036 " - 28661808 28,548,836
Constrution ih prograss 132484 132,484 TTETE 208,062 :
Other asssts - = ZHE 75 BEL P8E.795 :
Less: #mpairment of assels - 2043850 12 462,066 2043880 12482088
LessAocumulated
Hdepreciation {25,292,248;  (24,230,350; {26,673 531} {25,348 .625) {51,885 779 (495?6,975):
Total T 33525164 F 33787156 5 54330007 % 65807651 § 67864177 B 99.354,807
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Long-term debl. Alihe end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debi oulstanding of $55,320,173.
Of thes amount, $38.828,172 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government while the
remainder of the City's debt represents bonds secured solely by speoified revenus sources {i.e., ravenue bonds).

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's Cutstanding Dely
General Coligation Debt, Revenue Bondgs and (iner Debt
Govemmental Activities Busmess-type Aclivities Tolals
2012 I 2012 2013 f 2012 2013 § 2042
Generat Obligation Dent '
Bontds $  3BOCOO0 § 4385000 § B &) - $ 3600000 § 4363000
Notes 16,988,841 174058672 18,684,230 19.808328 35674071 37,312,007
Totsl General Obligation 20588 841 2177087 18,684,230 18,806 328 39,274,070 1,877,007
Revene bonds - - 15507801 15,266 .067 15501,007 15,266,092
Due 1o Town of Menashs - - 554 101 580,642 B5L A0 580 (142
TFotal & Z058GB4 & ZOTTOETZ F BRATIBBIZ % BSTEP4BR § 5532017% & BFBIS IS

State statutes limit the. amount of general obligation debi the City may issue 0'8% of s fotal equalized valustion.
The current debt imitation for the Cily s $48,744,700.

Econemic Factors ard Mext Yeat's Budgets and Rates

= The economic condition and outlook of the City has remained fairly siable based on & retatively hesithy b of
mamiacturing, tourismn, service industry and retall activibies which support-our tax base,

= inflattonary rends n-ouwrtegion compars Tavorably fo national indices,

&l of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budgst for the 2014 year,

Gontagting the Gity's Finsnciel Management

This financia! repor! is designed to provide & general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest

n the: City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or reguests for

agditional fnancial . information shoult be addressed fo the Cly of Menasshe Compirolier/Treasurer, 140 bain
Streat, Menashea, W 548952-3180,

g
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ASBETS
Cash andinvestmsris
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Spacial gssessmenis
{oans
Land contracts receivable
Dae from other govemments
Inventones and prepaid items
Reastricted and other assets
Cash and mnvaestments

Capitalization deposi with CVMIC

Interest receivable
Froperly held for sale
Capital assels, nondepreciabie
Land
Othar assals
Construction in progress
Capitat assets. depreciable
Bulidings and improvemenis

Improvements other thar.buildings

Machinery and equipment
infrastruciure

Less Accumulaled deprecisiion

TOTAL ASSETE

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Tower gainting

LIABILITIES
fccounts payabile

Accrued and other current Habiiles

Accrued nterast payabie
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues
Long-term obligations

Due within one vear

Due inragre than one yoar

TOTAL LIABILITIES

JEFERRED INFLOWE OF RESOURCES

Property taxes

MET POBITION

Net investmenst iy caniial assets

Restricistfor
Dbt service
Capital projecis
Lease-obligation
Community development
Other purposes

Unrastricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

CITY OF MEMASHA, WISCTONSIN

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013

Componarni Unit

Governmental Business-type Redevelopment ‘
Aolivities Artivities Tolals Autharity }
5 §.574,380 § 2408588 § 11983878 % 241,233
6,505,226 - 6,506,228 -
480,378 5,358,855 5,835,032 -
661,734 - 661,732 -
o9,488,083 5488055 -
£.645 - 8,845 498319
553,987 178,387 732288 -
167 068 818,860 OBEG 05T =
473,428 74543,088 ES818517 -
1,031,820 - 1.031.220 -
- 4538 4,538 -
- 2,042,650 2,043,850 3,178,500
8,183,878 2510566 11.674,242 -
- 288795 288,795 -
132,484 77 A78 206,882 -
12,028,633 8.6580.533 20,680,166 -
- 45,702 838 49,702,938 -
8826814 7728778 26,558,392 -
28,681,805 ~ 28,661,805 -
(25202 248) {(26.873,537) {51.885. 779 -
58473538 Jiod4e12r L 129,522 880 3.8918.552
- 53,820 53,520 L
BEGETE 4.151,608 4 738,280 5,018
15,304 2,036,308 2048812 -
392,941 BE3.454 1,083,388 -
186G - 196 5,808,000
218,588 112,579 332,188 -
7,088,300 2,365,760 $.465.060 -
15385813 44 745 886 80105478 _ -
23672 815 54.003.375 FTATEAS0 3005 015
11,236,028 - 11,236.028
13,076,185 21222 152 34,300,347 -
1.468.06% 48488 2,217,857 -
2.6B6.284 1,348,038 4034323 -
- 897,381 £887.381 -
1,763,678 E 1,763.678 -
568,550 . 569 550 -
2890918 (7,208,763} 3215875 14,537
S 25557884 % 17008267 % 40586987 % 14,837 ‘

The notes to the basic financial staternents. are an integrat parl of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2018

Program Revenues

Operating | Capital Granis

Charges for | Grants and ang
Functions/Programs Expenses Servites Contributiens | Contributions
Brimary Governmaent
Governmental Activilies
General government % 1,230,257 % 343,038 3§ - $
Public safety ¥4 703 E79.57 85180 7,428
Public works 3,774,285 478 E74 06,346 158,741
Meaith and human servipses 863,081 FILBTV T8 782 -
Culture and recreation 3478744 1,008,867 49 271 36,048
Conservalion and development 1,588,625 7 AT 22208 9u7
iterest on debi _ 777 065 . - -
Tolal Governrmental Activities 18,134 744 2881444 0 GYRTGY 0 188213
Businessype Achvities
Flectric utiity ' #5.640,323 45 A58 240 - 186873
Siaam. utiity 848,385 - w -
Water utility 3,889,817 5,732,434 - 75,763
Teiecommunication ulility 56,647 99,848 - 8,964
Sewerage system 1,555,688 2,264,372 - -
Stormwater utitity 1,218,845 1,113,744 - .
Total Business-type Activities 53010706 54 699 830 » 102.760
Total Primary Government § 72154450 § 57351083 § g73797 % 300,912
Component Unit
Redevelopment Authorily 5 272850 & 270000 & - 3 -

General revenuas
Taxes
Property taxes levied forgeneral purposes
Froperty taxes levied fordebt servipe
Tax incremerts
Otheriaxes
Federal and stete grants and.gther contrihiifions
not restricted to speacific funglions
interest.and investment earnings
Miscellansous
Transfers
Total general revenues and fransfers

Change inngl posilion

{oss on impairment of gssals
Net position - Janueary 1

Net position ~Decerber 31

The notes-io the basicfinancial statements arean integral part of this statement.
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Nei (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

Uompotent
Unitt

Governmental | Business-type Redevelopmant |
Aotivities Activities Totsis Authority
% (887,212} & $ 887212y B
{7.068,528; - {7,069 526) “
(2,428,604 - {2,428 .604) -
(5114723 - (B 4723 -
(2,098 462} (2,098,482, “
(1,538,948 - (1.538,649) -
(777,085 - {777.085} -
(18,311, 290; - {15,311,290; -
- 140,110 {140 4710) -

(648,385 {648 385}

o 1,918,380 1,818,380 -

- 50166 50168 -

= 708,683 TOE 583 -

N (106,101} {106,101} ~

e 1,782 635 1,782,635 «
15,311,280) 1,782.633 {13,528 857) -

- - - [2.850
B.085,478 - 8085478 e
1,484 735 - 1,494,735 -
1,867 661 - 1,867 561 -

167,015 - 187,095
4176, 791 - 4, VF 79 -
296,682 70401 3BE 763 -
70,885 - 70.B85
{285 641} 285 6841 - -
15,803,546 355,740 16,256.338 -
592 306 2,438,375 2.730:681 (2,850}
- {10.408,588) {10,408 588 “
22.985 388 25 280 490 48 245 878 17,387
$ ZABET6BL4 § 1TO0D0ZE7 & 40566881 % 14,537
72

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 18




AE5ETS

Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes

Delinquent personal property taxes

Accounts
Special assessments
L.oans
Lend contract recenable
Due from other funds
Due from other govermmaenis

Rasiricted cash and invegimeanis

Inventories and prepaid fiems
Advanceto otherfunds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANGES

Liabilifiss
Accounts pavable

Accrued and other cuyverd Habilities

Crue o otherfunds
Duetoother governments
Linearned revenues
Advance from other furnds
Total Lsabiiiiies

DBeferred Infiows of Resources
FProperly taxes
Loans receivabie
Special assessmenis
Land contract receivable

Total Deferred Infiows of Resources

Fund Balances
Monspendabie

Inventories gnd prepaid tems

Longderm atiance
Festricted
Diebiservice
Library endpwment
Communiily developrment
TiD project plan
Park-deveiopment
Hattie ‘Minor Scholarship
Pubiic-safety
Heckrod! natidre canter
Senior center
Assigned
Linassigned
Generat fund
Special revenues funds
Capital projects funds
Total Fund Balanoes

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESCURCES, AND EUND BALANCES

{Continuad;

CITY OF MENABHA, WISCONSIN

Ralance Shest
Governmental Funids
Degember 31, 2013

Uthar Teial
Sovernmental | Govemmenizd
Gengral Deht Sewvice Funds Funds

5 5701188 % 1853284 5 2061575 F 015,058
4 845,018 B9Z,18¢ 1,078,538 £415. 745
a3 481 - - 93,487
A458.344 - 12,034 ABG.3T8
1,887 858,737 " 661,734
- 3,800,000 1,588,053 8§ .488,083
- 8,045 - 8,840
£3.804 - 1,801,008 1,654,912
553837 - - 553.837
- - 473,428 473,428
TR L6 - - 167 068

- - 271 000 221.000

T 11184905 & 7234455 & 2 T335576 & 28 734634

% AR B - % 88582 % 514,201
TEA08 - - 18304

- - 4,954,917 1854912

1898 - - 108
191,101 20,305 2003 218588

- - 221.000 221.000
654,218 201,385 2,253 588 2,828 202
G304, 147 1,156,008 TRYH BT 11,236,028
~ 3,900,000 1588053 5,488,053

- 654,737 - ‘58,737

" 8,845 - 5,845

8,104,942 5,724,681 3,563 831 17,392 764

167,068 . - 167 068

- 2,122,008 2122008

- 1.468,060 - 1,468,069

- - 2B3.013 283,015

“ 175,825 175,625

- B 798,367 718,367

- = 227087 227087

- - 33,235 33,238

- - 3.07% 3075

- - 4,78% 4.78%
~ - 18,351 18,3251

2TT 08 = 142,013 aBsa.0ve
1,882.408 - - 1,882 40%

. - (493.451) (493 457

- - {1.B87.055} (1,887 055!

2 APEDLE 1489088 1.518 057 5 413 668

. 130084 g0n

S e JATEE

S, T7.3355678

5 25734 634

13

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 19




CITY OF MENASHA WISCONSIN
Balance Shest {Continued)
Gavernmenta! Funds
Decamber 31, 2013

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position

Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amourits reporied for governmental activities inthe statement of net position are
different because;

Capltal assets used in governmental activities are ot current finansial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Oiher fong-term assets are nof avaiigble to pay current perjed expendires and
therefore are deferred in thefunds.
Special assessments
L.oans receivable
Land cohtract receivable

iternal service funds reported in the statement of nel position as governmants]
activities 4see page 18)

Some lighilities are not dus and payabls inthe current sevied and, therefore,
are not reported inthe funds,
Bonds and notes pavable
Debi premium
Compensated absshoss
OPER liahility
Accrued intereston long-term obligdations

Netf Position of Governmmental Adlivities as Reporied on the Siaterment of Net Posttion
{see page 10}

The notes-ie the basic Tnancial siatements are an integral part of this statement,
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3,501,370

854 737
5488053
£.945

4,340,988

% (20,589,841}
(12,218
(1,534,716
(318,334

(309 841, (22855 (54}

L 23557 694




TITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Revenuss
Taxes
Special assessments
infergovernmenial
Licenses and permils
Fines and{orieits
Public chorges for semvices
irtergovernmanial chargesfor servines
Miscelansous
Total Revenues

Expendiures

Current
General governmatil
Fublic safaty
Fublic works
Heglth-and human services’
Culture and recreafion
Conservation-and developmeant
Oither

Diebt service
Principa
trierest and fisos! charges

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excass of Revenuas Over Unden
Expenditures

Cither Financing Sourtes {Uses)
Long-term deblissued
Trarnsters in
Transfers out
Tots! Uther Fingrting Sources {Liskg)
MetChange i Fund Balances
Furid Balances - January 1

Furd Balances - Decamber 31

{Cortinusdy

Governmental Funds
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

l Other Total
; Governmental | Governmental

i Genaral ¢ DebiBervice Fands Funds
B 7082088 5 1,484,735 § 21488085 § 11644888
- 440,629 - 440 622
4,712,074 - 385 556 BAB7T30
470,200 - 171,350 641650
145,358 - - 145 358
418,555 - 212,657 832,212
1,176,285 - 18,951 1,188,276
128,735 251,628 1,396,525 1,776,88¢
15,036,376 2 186 986 4 364 164 21587 52¢
4,268 450 85721 4,354 971
THBAETZ - 305,965 7,614,241
2835408 - 377,327 3,312,438
845 150 - - B45 150
2. 742881 - 262,254 2.8975135
2528086 - 370,566 BE3,537
- = 52 481 52.48%
- 1,967 847 - 1,567 647
- 746,357 - 740,327
- - 1084 B&T 1.084 687
15,637 .827 2707874 2,264 005 20,608 806
(601451) (520.988) 2,100,158 977,720
- - T8E 816 TBE 816
739,086 213,724 80,668 2,861,475
(74811 {1,475 .836) {1,686.473) {3,247 120}
864 275 855,888 (£18.958] 501,175
62,824 154,800 1,281 171 1478880
2363718 4,334 188 236,886 ®.984.773

& 2.42€ 542

1468060 & 1818057 § 5413668
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CITY OF MEMNASHA, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances {Continuad)
Governmenisl Furngds
For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2013

Recongiliation to the Statement of Activilies

ket Change in Fund Balances from previous page § 1,478,885

Gaovernmentat funds report capital outiays as expenditures. However, irvthe
gtaterment of activities the cost of those assets is sliccated over thelr estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outiay reported in governmental fund statemenis $ T TR
Depreciation expense reporied in the statemant of activities {1,236 689}
Amount by which capital oultays are less than depreciation in
current period {485 514)

Cerlmin emploves benefits are reported inthe governmeantal funds when amounts
gre paid. The statement of activities reports the value of benefits-earmed during
the year, Thizwyearthe acorusl of thess benefits increased by (48,704}

Botecapitel essels acquired and other developmant expenditures incurrett daring the
vear ware finarced with-dabt. Debt issued is reported in the governmental funds as an
other financing seurce. I the stgtement of net position; however, debi constituies &
orng-term ligbility. The amount of deb! procseds reported in the governmental fund
satemenisis: {786,816}

Raepayment of prircipal on longderm debtl is reporiediin the governrmental funds as an
expenditure, butis reported as a reduction inlongderm debi inthe statement of
net position ard does not affect the statement of actvities, The-ameuni of long-
term obligation payrments in thecurrent year ia: 807,647

triterest payments on ouistanding debt are reportad in the governmental funds as an
expendiiure when paid; iy the statement of activities interest s reportad as it acerues, {06 8843

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums and discounts when
the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amoriized i the
sigtement olactivities. Thecurrent year amoriization is; 20,180

The nelrevenus of internal service funds is reported with governmental activilies. 225,425

Revenues in the siatement of activities that de not pravide curesn finandial resourcss
ars nol reporied as revenues inthe funds. {1,774.008)

Change in Net Position of Governmenta! Activities as Reported inthe
Statement of Activities (see pages 71 - 12) 5 582306

The notes to the basic financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Budget and Actual
Genergl Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Siatement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Variancs
Final Budget -
Budgeled Amounts Agctual Puositive
Original | Final Amounis | {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes 7R78,637 § 7878637 5 7682.08% & 3432
Intergovernmental 4,756,318 4,756,318 4712174 (44,145,
Licenses and permils 453 625 453,625 470,200 16.575
Fines and Torfeits 450,000 155,000 145 358 {4,842}
Public charges Torservices 425,750 425750 418,855 {7,165
intergovernmental charges for services 13194382 1,818,432 1,178,285 (140,947}
WMiscellanaous 154000 79,060 128,735 48,735
Totsl Revenuas 165.237.763 15162763 15,035.376 {126,387}
Expenditures
Current
Generat-governmerit 1,398 414 1,432,871 1,268 458 54 421
Public safety 7,791,532 7,833,003 7583478 AL T3
Public works and sanitation 27,808,808 2,842,808 2.835108 7,800
Health and human semnvicas B8C 744 847,384 845 150 F2.244
Culture and recreation 2812772 2,854,044 2,712,881 142,063
Conservation and-developmient 282810 285,781 297 966 £.785
Capital oullay 44 355 - - -
Total Expendiures 16,117,532 16,276,881 15,637 827 530,054
Exoess of Revenuss Dver {Undet) Expenditures {(B78 769} {1,114 118 501,451) 512,667
Cther Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfersin 708,789 g 788 738,086 28,317
Transfers out - - {74sn {74811
Teial Other Finanging Sources {Uses) 702,768 708,768 664,275 {45 484}
Hetr Change in Fund Balance (178000} {404,346% 82,824 48T T3
Fung Balanos ~ Januarey 1 2 3B3 718 2,363 718 PR3 TIB -
Fund Balanoe - December 31 283718 § 18507380 § 0 A5 547 & 487473

The.notes fo the basicfinancis! statements are an integral partof this statement,
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CITY OF MEMNASHA, WISCONSIN
Staternent af Nef Position
Proprietary Funds
Decarmber 31, 2013

Business4ype Activilies ~ Ersterprise Funds Gowvernmental
Aotiities -
Mernashe Sewagde Stormwater irtamat Service
Utilities Treatment LUHitity Totals Fusids
ASSETS -
Cash and investments % 863,202 § 513543 § O3 844§ 2409589 % 88432
Recawabies
Accolinis 5,053,381 2174 - 5,355 565
inventories and prepaid expenses H18.88Y - - 818.98¢ -
[lue from other governments - 177 856 A 178,357 -
Restricied and otherassels
Cash ang mvesiments 7RE30RS 80000 - 7,843,080 -
Capitalization depositwith CYMIC - - . - 1,081,220
Interest receivabis 4,536 - - 4538 -
Property held for sale 2043650 - 2042650 =
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land 1,194,032 - 1:318,334 250,368 44,796
Otherassets 2BE. TN w - 288 785 -
Construction iny progress TV AETE - - 77 478 132484
Capital assets, gepraciable
Buiidings 8,560,535 - - 8,660,533 1,000,647
improvements other thanbuildings 31,664 282 8,669,127 4,368 526 48,702 938 -
Machinery and squipment 17728778 - - 17,728778 £,656,288
Lass Accumalated derreciation (73,628 541 {1,226.275) CHBIE,T71 {Z8:673 531} {4.808.842}
TOITAL ABSETS HEB32 204 8 518 581 10.800,337 _ F04nAe 4413 440
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF REBOURCES
Tower painting 53,520 - - 53,520 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable 4. 040,843 80,063 80,602 #1451 808 72,471
Accruad and other current fiskilitics 2,030,308 - - 2,030,308 -
Accrued interest payatis 868,862 14,582 83,454 @
Uneamned revenue 112,579 - - 112,578 -
Lang-term obligafions
Due withiry one year 2420060 220,400 25,300 U360, 750 -
Due inmers than eng year 406736868 3547 488 G880 & FA0 B6E -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8 BTG A2 3,862 254 814,703 54,083,375 72471
MET POSITION
MNetinvestment in caplial assets 033848 3,675,397 8512081 21,222,182 3,623,788
Restrictad for
Debtservice F48 488 - - T4B 488 -
Lesse ebligation BG7.381 - 897,381 -
Plant repiacement 1,348,03¢ - - 1,348,038 -
Unrestricted (8,058,454) 979,018 B72.643 (7.206.703) 1317181
TOTAL HET POSITHON § 280600303 T 46064330 L Bagsana & 17000767 4.340968

The noles to the basic financial statemenisare an integral part of this statement.
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Operaling Revenues
Charges-for satvices
Oiher
Total Oparating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Operafion and maintenance
Insurance payments.and slams
Depreciation and amottization
Taxes
Total Operaling Expenses

Operating Incoms {Lossy

Nonoperating Revenues {(Expenses)
Irwvestment income
Merchandising and jobbing
interest and fiscal charges
Gain ondisposal-of canital assels
Miscelianeous
Totsl Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

tncome {Loss) Before Contribukions
and Trapsiers

Capital confributions
Transfers in

Transfers put

Change in Net Position

Loss on impairment of Assels
Net. Position - January 1

et Pasition - December 33

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Statemant of Revenues, Expanses and Changes in Net Postiion
Proprietary Funds

="Forthe Year Ended "STEXT(CYEDATE, "memrmm d, vwyy™

Business-type Aclivities - Erierprise Funds

Governmenial
Aotivities -
Merasha Bewage Stormwater _ internal Service
Uiilities Treammant Litiity Tolals Furids
$ 54025358 8 2264572 § 1MAT44 B 5440EATE % 2128668
285,547 - e 285 547 -
51,310,805 2 264 372 1 A3 744 54 688 029 2,426,668
45 351,282 1,347 682 1EEB T 47866 118 1A 813
- - - - 246,875
1,860,227 124,782 Y3686 ZOBTIBEE 237.052
274 70% - _ - 224,703 s
47 485 187 1ATZ A4 1:214.845 50477471 1,883,840
3.8728,725 7o gg {I06100 #5879 580 2327728
BB BT 36 1884 288
618 - - -
{1,880,801) (88,245, - -
- - - - (7,589}
{868,18%) - - (868,188 -
{2.680,185) {83 .215) 1,884 (2,761 816} {7,303
145538 768,713 (¥04:297) 1,760,034 295425
102,700 - - 102,700 -
LATERIE - B 1:475,836 -
(BT 037} {213,158} - (1,480,185}
TTET 0T 485 855 £104.2497) 2,138,375 225,425
4095085 - - (10,408,5883 g
~ 11:831,864 4468.775 0485851 25280480 &, 115,544
£ 20859303 % 4654330 % 0385634 L 17ponZeT ¢ 4,340,066

The notes to the basic financial statements are anintegral par of this statement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Statement of Cash Fiows
Propristary Funds
For the Year Bnded December 31, 2013

i Enterprise Funds

Governmental E
Activities -
Manasha Sewsge Stormwater intarnal Sevice
Utifities Treaiment Uity Totals Furds |
Cash Flows from Operating Achivities
Cash received from customers $ BOUB1E84 § 2053047 % 17404 5 54048350 0§ 74028
Cash recetved from City = - - - 21777480
Cash peid to suppliers (42,701,876 (12445852} (530270 45 484.R98) {1.111,549;
Cash paid o ambloyess {2,463.584) (184,879 (613,824} {3,262 037 {580 .476;
et Cash Provided {Used) by Operating
Activilies 4,815,724 823,571 {37880 8401415 474 645
CashyFlows from Mencapiial and Relaied
Financing Adtivitias
Transfers (4,278,504} {213,158 - {1,492 062) -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Firiancing Activities
Acguisition of capital assets {B¥7o7e; FATY,056) - (4,457 0358 {448,163}
Principal payments on caplital debt {£,551,795) {198,037} {25,047} {2376 775 -
Transfers fordebt payment 1475836 “ - 1475838 -
Proceeds fromrcapiial debtissued 80,172 428275 - 1,188,447 -
Advances to{fromy) other funds {(253.842% - - {255,842,
Interast payments.on capital debt (1,582,579 (B2.838) - {16545 298) -
Asselbdisposal cosls and salvage {22.8603 - w {23,860} -
‘Gontdbutions from property owners 102,780 - F0Z2 700 -
Hot Oash Used by Capital and
Related Financing Activities {2.831.347) {331,457) {25 54 £3,988,748) (448 163
Cash Flows from Investing Aclivilies
interesi received on invesiments 57 454 30 1884 50,368 286
Change ¥y Cash and Cash Equivalents Y2987 To886 {81,087 TEL,O078 28,768
Cash and Cash-Equivalents - January 1 8053 2584 514,557 4,78 9.862 702 T3 BEB
Cash end Cash Equivalents - December 31 $ EB28zo] § O BOIG4R 5 900 844§ 103826T7E & 858 432
{Carinued)
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Reconcilistion of Operating Incoms {Loss) 1o

CITY OF MEMASHA, WISCOMSIN

FProprietary Funds

Statement of CashFiows {Conlinued}

For fhe Year Ended Decermber 31, 2013

mat Cash Provided {Used) by Operaling Activities:

Oiperating income {loss}

#diustments to reconciie operating income {loss)
tornet cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortizalion
Merchandising and fobbing

Miscellangous

Changes in assets and iabillies
Accounts receivable
Motes receivabls
inventories and prepaid sxpenses
Aocounis payable
Accrued and other liabilifies

Daferred credits

Het CashProvided {Used) by Operating

Activilies

Reconcilialion of cash and cash equivalents

Lash and invesimenis

Restricted ang other cash and investmanis
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
Menasha Sewage | Stormwater Intarnal Service
Liilities Treatment Utility Totais Furdls
$ 3825723 § 791828 § (108400 § 4511580 % 232728
2,120,184 124,762 93,866 2,338,812 237 052
10618 - - 10,618 -
{568,322} - - (586,322} -
£188,083) (314,578) 270 {502 387 20,600
(55.220) . - {55 229) -
{28 769} - - {26,268} -
{137,058} 21,458 {25,718 {141,314} {15437}
{(FO.923 - - {73,823} -
88,517y - - {96,917}
E 4Bi1E724 & 623E7Y § {37880y & 5401418 & 474,643
B BE220Z 5 513543 § 932844 § 240858t 0§ 358,437
7.863.088 80,000 - 7,843,088 -
F RB2EZ9Y L 503842 § 932844 § 10352878 & S58.4372

The notes 1o the basicfnancial Statements are an integral pard of this sislemant.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCORSIN
Statement of Net Posliion
Agency Fund
Decembear 31, 2013

3

i Agency Fund

ABLETE I

- Cash and investments %
Receivables

Taxes receivable |

6,508,980

8,767,403

TOTAL ASBETS ¢ 16.306.38%
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmenis 5 18,308 382

The notes o the basic financial siaterents are an integral par of this staiement.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSHY
Notes 1o Basic Finangial Statements
December 31, 2043

HOTE A - BUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACTOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial staternents of the Ciy of Menasha, Wisconsin {(the City™), have been prepared in
corformity with accounting principles generelly accented in the United States of America (GAAP] as applied
to government uniis. The Governmental Accouniing Standards Boarg (GASE) is the acoepted standare-
setting body for esizblishing governmental accounting and fingncia! reporting pringiples, The significant
sccounting principles and policies uvillized by the City are described halow:

1,

Reporting Enfity

The City of Menashs s @ municipat corporation govemnad by an elected eight member councl.  in
accordance with GAAP, the basic financial statements arg reguired to include the City {the primary
povernment) and any separate component units thal have a significant operational or fnancigl
relationship with the City, The Cilv-has identified the Redevelopment Authorily of the City of Benasha,
Wisconsin (RDAYas 2 component unit due 0 the significance of the City's financial accouniaoilitywith it

individual Component Unit Disclosurs

DHECRETELY PRESENTED COMPENENT LNT

The component unlt column in the basle financial staiements includes the financial data of fhe
Redevelopment Authority of the City of Menasha, Yisconsin {RDA) The RDA was esiablished to
coordinate blight prevention and elimination an¢ urban renewal throughout the City.  The financial
statements of the RDA are discretely presenied in 2 separate column io emphasize that it s legally
separate from the City. The RDA is governed by & seven-member boarc appointed by the Mayor and
confirmed by the City Council. The RDA essentially exists 1o provide oversight and furding for City
development projects in accordance with the powers conferred by the Wisconsin Siatutes. City spproval
is nesded for the acquisition and transter of real esiate, exercise gowers of aminant domain, issuance of
tebl and establishment of an snnual budgel. Beparate financial statemeants are nol prepared for the
REA. :

JOINT VERTURE

The Citv of Menasha iz & participant with six othgr arez munigipalities in & joint venture 1o operate a
wastewster treatment facllity. The Neenah-Mengsha Sewerage Comymission was cresbted for that
purpese. The'Commissionis governed by & sevensmemberboard composed of appointad members from
the various municipaiities,  The Gommission is designed o be a sell-supporting entity, deriving its
revenues from sewage freatment user fees from the various muricipalities and industries it serves. The
Commission has not been greated for profit, and no part of the get income or profit shall accrue io the
benefit of any ptivate individugl or any organization crested for profit, Complete financial siatements for
the Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission can be oblglned from the Commission's office at
101 Garfield Avenue, Menasha, Wisconsin 54952

Sovernment-Wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

The government-wide finangial statements {ie., the statement of nel position and the statemend of
activities ) report informationon all ofthe nonfiduciary activities of the Tity. For the mogt pard, the sffect of
interfund activity has been removed from these-statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily
supported by iaxes and intergovermmental revénues, are reported separately from business-fype
avfivities, which rely to a sigrifficant exient ondees and charges for suppoert.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of & giver funclion are
offset by program revenues. Sirect expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with & specific
funclion of segment. Program revenuss inclutde 1) charges o customers of applicants whe purchase,
use, or directly benefil from goods, senvices, of privileges provided by a given function or segment ang
Zygrants and contributions thal are restricted 1o meeting the operational or capital reguirements of &
particular function. Taxes antd-other items not propearly included among program revenues are reporisd
instead as gengral revenues.
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CITY OF MENABHA, WIBCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financiz! Statements
December 31, 2013

ROTE A~ SUMMARY OF BIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)

Separate Tmancial statemenis are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiducary
funds. even though the latter are excluded from the governmeni-wide financial staiements.
Governmental funds include general. special revenus, deb! service and capiial projects funds,
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal services funds. Major individual-governmentai funds.and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columng i the fund financizl statemanis.

The City reporis the following major governmestal funds:

GeENERAL FUND
Thigis the Cliy's main operating fund. it eccounts for all financial resources ofthe general government,
except those accouried Tor in ancther fund.

[DEBT SERYICE FUNE
This fund acoounts for the rescurces sccumulated and payrenis miade for pringipal and interest on
long-term general-obligation debtof governmental funds.

The City reports the faltowing majorenterprisefunds:

MenasHA UTILITIES FUusD _
This fund iz used 1o acoount for the operdting aoiivilies of the Mensshz Water, Stearm and Eleciric
aperations.

SEWAGE TREATMENT FUND _
This fund i used to account for the operating activities of the Menasha Sewage Treatment sperations.

STORMWATER UTILITY Fut
This furid is used to gooount for the operating activities of the Menasha Stormwater operations.

Additionally. e governmaent reports the following fund types:

internal service funds mocount for fleet maintenance and insurance services provided to other
departments of the City on a costreimbursement basis.

The City sccounts for praperty laxes collected on-behalf of othergovernments in an agency fund

4. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the ecenomic resowrces measurement
focus and the sccrual basis of accounting. as are the propristary fund and fiduciary fund {other than
agency funds) financial statements. Revenues gre recorded when samisd and expenses are recordad
whant & liability I8 ncurred, regardisss of the Yiming of releted cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the vear fer which they are levied. Grants-and similar items are recognized as.revenuas
as-soon 25 all eligibility reguirements imposed by the provider have beenmel. Agency funds foliow the
accrugibasis of accounting, and donot have a measuremerit focus.

Governmenital fund financial ststements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus artd the modified accrual basis of pocounting. Revenues are recognized as-seon as they zre both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered 1o be. avaiable when they are vollectibie within the
current period or soon anpugh thersaflerto pay liabilities of the current pericd.  For this purpose. the City
considers revenuss to be available If they are collediatl within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expendifures gererally are rgcorded when a lability is incurred, as under accrusl accouniing.
However, debt sarvice expenditures, as well as expendiires relaled to compensated sbsences and
claims and judgmenis, are recorded only when payment is dus.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes o Basic Financia! Siatements
Dscember 31, 2013

HOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continuad)

Revenues sUsceptible to accrusl indide intergovernmental granis, indergovernmentel charges for
asrvices, public charges for serviges and interest.  Other revenues such as licenses and permits, fines
and forfeits and miscelianesous revenues are recognized when received in gash or when measurable and
available.

As 5 general rdls the effect of interfund aclivity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Dxceptions to:this general rule gre payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
Thy's water and slectric funclions end various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges
would distor! the direst costs ang program revenues reporied Tor the various funclions concerned.

Amounis reported as program revenuss include 1icharges 1o cusiomers or applicanis for goods.
services, of privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) cperaling grants and contributions, and 3) capita
grants and contributions.  Internally-dediosted resources are reported as general revenueswather than as
program fevenues, Likewise general revenues intlude alllaxes.

Froprietary tunds distinguish operaling revendes and expenses from nonoperaling items.  Operating
rgvenues and expensas generally result from providing services and producing and deliverng goods in
shnhection withh a proprigtary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Civ's enterprise funds are charges 1o customers for services. Operating expenses for-enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative sxpenses. ang depreciation on capiial asseis, Al revenues
and expenses not meeting this-definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Vhen both resitcisd and unrssticled msouUrees are avallgble for use, It s the City's policy fo use
rastricted resources firgt, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

5. Assets, Ligbiifies, Deferred Dulflows/Inflows of Resourpes, and Net Position or Fund Balance

a. Cashandinvestments
Gash and investments gre-combingd in the financial statements, Cash deposiis consist of demand
anc time deposits with financial institutions and are caried al cost.  Investments are sigted st fair
value, Fair value s the amount at which & financial instrument could-be exchanged i & current
transaction ‘between willing perties, other than i & forced or liguidation sale. For purposes of the
statement of cash flows, &l cash deposits and highly fouid investments {including resiricted aescts}

with & maturity of thres months or less are congidersd ¥ be cagh-equivelents,

b. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amount with uncollectible amounts recogrized under the
direct write-off method, No asliowance for uncollectible acoounis has been provided since it i3
betieved that the amountof such allowance would nigt be material to the'besic financis! siatements.

¢. interffung Receivables and Pavables
‘During the course of operations. numerous fransaclions occur between individual funds Yor goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” and "due 1o other funds” in the fund financial sistements. Noncurrent portions of the interfund
receivadles for the governmental funds are reporied as "advances to other funds” and are offsset by
nonspendable fund balance sinees thay do not constitute expendable avaliable financial resources and
therafore gre not available for appropriation.

The amount reporisd on the satement of nst positiors for itternal balances represents the residus!
balance ocutstending betwean the governmental activiies and businessype aclivities.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes fo Basic Financia! Siatements
Decamber 31, 20138

NOTE-& -« SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued)

g, Inveniories
inventories are recorded st cost, which approximates market, using fhe firstdn, first-out method,
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an

axpendilure at the tme individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

inventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendabie fund
baiance windicate thatthey do not represent spendable availzbie financial resources.

e, Prepaig llems
Fayments made o vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal yvear are
recorded as prepaid items.

Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
batanceto indicate that they do'not represent spendable available financial resourcas.

f.  Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plani, equipment and infrasirutiure assets, are reporied in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the governmeni-wide financial
statements. Tapiial assets are defined by the City-as assels with an intial, individual cost of $5.000
or nigher and an estimated useful lifein excess of two years. Such assels are recorded gt hisioricat
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Denated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair value at the dale of donation,

The cests of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or matenally
axtend assetlives are not capilalized.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straightine methad over the following estimatad
ygeful lives:

Governmenial | Business-type
Activities Activities
Years

Assets
Buiidings 30 - 47 25 - Bl
Improvements other than buiidings . 25 - 100
Machinery and eguipment g-20 Z-40
Infrasiructure 10 - 100 -

Compensated Apsences

itis the Citv's policy to permit emplovees to accumulate eamed but unused vacsiion and sick leave
benefits inaccordance with bargaining upit agreements. Allwvacation and sick Jeave iz accrued when
ngurred in the governmentwide and propristary fund finandial siztements, A lizbilly for thesse
wmounis s reported in the governmantal furmds m the fund Tinancial statements oply if they have
malured, for example, as a resuit of employee resignations and setirements,

©

The Menasgha Uillities Enterprise Fund has recorded a liabiilty for acerued employes vacation lsave at
December 31, 2013, Employees are not granted & specific number of sick days, rather they may use
a5 many as needad i each particular instance. Employess are no! allbwed to gocumulaie sick leave.
Therefore, no lebility for scocumulated sick isave i recorded 2t December 31, 2013
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis
December 31, 2018

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIER {Continued)

n

Defarred Outflows/Infiows of Resources

in-addition 1o assets, the statement of net position wili somestimes report & sepearaie section for
daferred outflows of resources. This separate financial staiement elemeni, deferred outfiows of
resources, represents @ consumption of net position that applies 1o & fuiure peripdis) and so will not
be recognized as an oulflow of resources {expense/expenditure} until then, The City has one type of
item towerpainting, thatgualifies for reporting in'this category.

In addiion 1o liabilities, the sistement of net position will sometimes report & separete section for
deferred inflows of rescurces. This separate fmancial sistenment element, deferred inflows &°
resources. represent an acquisition of nat position that apphies to & fulure perot and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resourcses {revenue) untll that time. The City has ong type of itlem that
gualifies for reporting irrthis category, property:taxes. The amounts will be recognized as aninfiow of
resources in the subsequent vear for which they were-levied. The City alse has an additiona! tvpe of
item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that gualifies for reporting in ihis
category, Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is Teporied only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds seport unavailable revenues from three sources, special
mssessmenis, oan receivables and fand contract recewvable, These amounis are deferrad and
recognizedas an inflow of resourges in the period the amounts become avaliable,

Long-term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statemenis,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as ligbilittes in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activilies, or proprielary fund statement of net position. Bong
nremiums and discounis are deferred -and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable sre
reported net of the gpplicable bond premium o discount, Bond issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actus! debt groceeds received, are reported as expenses.

in the fund fingncial statemsnis, governmental funds secogrize bong premiums. and discounts, as
welt as bond issuance costs, during the carrent period. The Tace amount of dabl issued is repodted
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reporied as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are weported as other financing uses.  lssuance cosis,
whether or not withheld from the actes! debt prosesds received, are reported as debt sewvice
axpenditures,
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
MNotes io Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i

Fund Equlty
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund balance of governmental funds are reporied in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purpeses. The following classications describe
the relative strength of the spending constraints slaced on the purposes for which resburees can be
used:

= Nonspendeble fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendabie Torm {such as Inverdory, prepald
items, oriong-term receivables) or are legally orcontraciually required to remain intagt,

« Restricted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by sxiernal parties
(such as grantor or bondholders), through constilutional provisions, or by enabling legisiation,

¢ Committed fund balance - Amounts that are canstrained for specific purposes by action of the
City Council. These constraints can only be removed ar changed by the City Council using the
same action that was uset tovreate them,

e Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of City
management. Residual amounts inany governmental fund, diher than the Generat Fund, are also
reporied as assigned.

« Unassigned fund balance - Amounis tha! ere availsble for any purpose. Positive urassigned
amounts are only reparted in the General Fund,

The City has not adopisd & fund balance spend-down policy regarding the order in which fund
balance will be ulilized. When & policy does not specify the spend-down policy, GASE Statement
No. b4 indicates that restricted funds would be spent first, followed by committed funds, and then
assigned funds. Unassigned funds watld be spent last.

SOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRETARY FUND STATEMENTS
Equity is clessified es nal position and displayed in thres componaents:

«  Netinvestment in capital assets - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulaied depreciation, less
outstanding balances of any bonds, morigages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

= Restricted net position - Amount of net position thal is subject to resirictions that are imposed by
1} external groups, such as creditors, granters, confributors or laws o regulations of other
governments or 2} law through constitutional provisions or enabling legistation.

e Lnrestricted ned position - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as net investmertt
in capital assels.

Estimates

The preparation of financial siatements In conformity with sccounting principles genarally acoepted in
the United States of America reguires management to make esfimaies ang assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actusl results could differ
from those estimates.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Motes 1o Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

1.

Budgeis and Budgetary Accouning

The City follows ihese procedurss in establishing the bubigetery daia reflected in the basic financial
statements;

2.

2

During October, City management submits to the City Council & proposed opersling budgsi for the
calendar year commencing the following danuary 1. The operating budgst includes proposad
expendiures ang the means of financing them. Afier submission to the governing body, public
nearings are held to oblain taxpayer comments. Foliowing the public hearings, the proposed budgst,
inchuding authorized additions and deletions, is legaliv-enacted by City Council action.

Budgets are adopted on s-Dasis consistent with accounting principles generally accepied i the
United States of America'{or the governmental funds. Budget is defined as the onginally approved
budge! plus-or minus approved amendments. Individual amendments throughout the vear were not
material in refation to the original budget.  Budget appropriations not expended during the year are
ciosed to fund balance uniess authorized by the governing body 1o be-forwarded dnto the succeeding
year's budgst,

Dwring the year, forma! budgetary imegration is smployed 28 = management cantrol devica for the
governmental funds. :

The legal fevel ol budgetary control is by activity or department. Expenditures may not sxceed
budgeted appropristions provided in accounts mainiained for each activity or department of the City.
Amendments o the budge! during the year reguire initial approval by managemert amd are
subsequently authorized by the City Coungil. Management does not have authority 1o amend activity
or departmert budget-accounts.

Encumbrance accounting is not used by the Cily to record commitmenis-related 1o unperformed
contracts for goods or services,

The City did not have any matetial violation of legal or confragtual provisions for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013,

Deficit Fund Eauity

The following funds had defich fund equily as of December 31, 2015

Defict Fund

Funds _ Balance
Special Revenue Funds
Taxincrements: district no. 3 e 314,367
Recyeling 124,703
Fastaemplovment siek leave reseive 1,800
Stemrn Uittty 52,481

CapitalProjects Funds
Capfatfaciiity 1,918
Tax incremental district no. 4 280542
Tax incremental district no, 6 47043
Tax incremental district no. 7 504,848
Tax incremental district no, 8 206,157
Tax incremental district no. 12 545,844

The City anticipates funding the above deficit from fulure revenues of the funds.
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Noies to Basic Financia!l Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTEC - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1.

Cesh and Investments

The Cliy maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for
use by ali Tunds. Each fund's portion of these accounts 1z displaved on the financia! sistements as "Cash
and investments.”

The City is authorized by Wisconsin Statute 86.06803 to invest in thefoliowing instruments:

&,

Time deposits In any credil union, bank, savings bank, trusi company orsavings and loan association
which is authorized fo fransact business in this stete if the time deposits malure in not more than
fhres years.

Bonds or securitiss issued or guarantsed s to principal and interest by the federal gavernment, or by
a gommission, board or other instrumentality of the federal governmeant.

Bonds or securities of any county, cily, drainage disirict, technical college district, village, town or
school district of this stafe. Also, bonds issued by & local exposition district local professional
peseball park district, loca! professional foothall stadum district, loca! cultural arte district. the
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinies Authority or the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority,

Aty security which matures or which may be tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within
not more than 7 years of the date on which it is acquired, i that security has & rating which is the
highest or second highest rating category assigned by Standard & Poor's Corporation, Moody's
investor Service or other similar nationally recognized rating agency or i that security is senior 1o, or
on.g parity-with, & security of the same issuer which has such a rating.

The Local Government Pooled Investment Fund.

Repurchase agreements wilth public depositories, ¥ the agreement iz secured by federal bonds or
securifies,

Securities of open-end management investment companies or investment trusts {mutua!l funds) if the
portioiio is limited 1o (a) bonds and securilies issued by the federal government or @ commission,
boarc or other instrumentality of the federal government, (b} bonds that are guaranieed as fo principal
and interest by the federal government or @ commission, board or other instrumentality of the federal
government, and (¢} repurchase agreements that are fully collaieralized bv these bonds or securitiae.

The City's library endowrment funds may invest in addiional types of investmants as allowed Lnder
Chapter 881 of the Wisconsin Siatutes.

The carrying amount of the City's cash and investments, including the senarate acoounts noted sbove,
totaled 327,150,700 on December 31, 2013 as summarizesd below:

Petiv cash and cash on hand 3 7,247
Deposits with financial instifutions 25,102,580
Investments
Comman slock 100
U.8. Treasury stripped sacurities 152,582
Repurchase agresments 1,208,827
Wisconsin Local Government investment Poal ' 464 844
Beneficial interest in Assets Meld by the Communily Foundalion 213,334

g 27,150,708
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CITY OF MERASHA, WISCONSIN
Notes io Basic Financial Stalements
December 31, 2613

NOTE € - BETAILED ROTES ON ALL FUNDS ([Continued)
Recongiliation to the basic financial statements:

Government-wide Statement of Net Position
Primary Government .
Cash and invesimenis _ 5 863,207
Restricied and other cash and invesimants 7862 084G
Componeni Unit
Cash and investments -
Fiduciary Fund-Statement of Net Position
Agency Fund

5 8. 826,281

Dsposits and investments of the City are subject fo-varicus risks. Pressnted below is 2 discussion of the
specific risks and the City's policy related o the risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the faillure of & depository financisi
institution, @ government-will not be able o recover its deposits or will not be ablelo recover coliateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for invesiments is the
risk that, in the event of the faiiure of the counterparty {e.g., broker-dealer) to 2 transaction, &-government
will not be able to recover the vaiue of its investment or collatera! securities that are in the possession of
ancther party. Wisconsin statutes reguire repurchase agreements to be fully collateralized by bonds or
securities issued or guaranieed by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The City does not have
an additional custodial credit risk policy.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposi
insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amourt of $250,000 for the combined amount of afi time and savings
deposits and $250.000 for interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing demand deposits per official
custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with financial institutions located cutside the Stats
of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of alt deposit
accounis per official custodian per deposiiory institution. Deposiis with credit unions are insured: by the
National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIFY in the amount of 3250.000 per credit union
member. Also, the State of Wisconsin has a Siate Guarantee Fund which provides a2 maximum of
$400,000 per public deposiiory above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government
However, due to the relatively small size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund's iotal
coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available,

As of December 31, 2013, $1,902,608 of the City's deposiis with financial institutions were in exoess of
federal and state depository insurance iimits. No amounts were coltateralized.

On December 31, 2013, the Cily held repurchase agreement investments of '$1,208.827 of which the
underiving securities are held by the investment's counterparty, not in the name of the City.

Bengficial Inlerest in Assets Held by the Community Foundation

The Civ eniersed into an agreement with the Community Foundation for the Fox Valley Region, Inc.
{Foundation} to establish the General Trust Fund and the Memorial Trust Funds of the Elisha D. Smith
Fublic Library Endowment. The Foundation refains these funds as its property In 2 corporate capacity,
not & Fust capacity, while the Cily reports ifs interest in the assels held by the Foundation at fair value.
The funds are o be used for support of the City's library operations and the City makes advisory
recommendations as to distribution of funds. The balance in these funds as of December 31, 2013 s
$213,334. Since the Foundation retains ullimate authority and control over the fund, additional
disclosures of investrmeni risks are not available.
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KOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This & measured by the assignment of & rating by a nationally recognized siatistical
rating organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities fo the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the actual rating as of year-end
for each investment fype.

Exempt
From Mol
Investment Type Amount Disclogure | AAL A Rated
U.S. Treasury siripped securities & 162,582 & 152,582 % - $ - & -
Wisconsin Local Government
fnvestment Pool - 4B4 544 " - - 464 449
Totals g 617,547 % 152 587§ - 3 - g 464 84¢

Interest Raie Risk

Interestrate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the far value of an
nvestment. Generally, the lenger the maturily of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair vaiue
to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments to market interest rate
flustuations is provided by the following tsbie that shows the distribution of the City's investments by
sty

Remalning Maturity {in Months)
12 Months 131024 251060 dMore Than
investrment Typs Arnount of Less Months Manths 80-Months
.5, Treastry stripped securities S 152,582 & - % - & - $ 152 502
Repurchase Agreaments 1,208,927 1208827 - - -
Wisconsin Local Government
investment Pool 454 B4¢ ABL 945 . - -
Totals 1827468 § 1874876 % - $ = & 152 587

Investment in Wisconsin Locs! Government Invesiment Pool

The City has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment pool of $464.04% at year-end.
The Wisconsin losal government investment pool {(LGIP) is part of the Siate Investment Eund (SIF}, and I8
managed by the Siate of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Seourities and
Exchange Commission, bul operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25, The 8IF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Parliciparits in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
ther funds in tolal on one day's notice. At December 31, 2013, the fair value of the City's share of the
LGIF's assels was substantially equal & the carrving value.
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES OGN ALL FUNDS {Continued)

2

Properiy Taxes

Property taxes consist of taxes on real estale and personal property. They are levied during December of
the prior year and become an enforceable lien on property the following January 1. Properiy {axes are
payable in various optiong depending on the type and amount. Personal property texes are pavable on or
before January 31 in full. Resl estate taxes.are payable infult by January 31 or infour-equal instaliments on
or before January 31, March 31, May 31 and July 31. Real estate taxes not paid by July 31 are purchased
by the Counly as part of the August iax setflement.  Delingueni personal property texes remain the
coliection responsibiity of the City.

The City bilis and collects its own property taxes and aiso levies and collecis taxes for the Menashs Schoo
District, Appleton Area Schoot District, Winnebago and Calumet Counties, Fox Valley Technical Coliegs and
the Staie of Wisoonsin, Collections and remittances of taxes for other entities are accounted for in the
property {ax agency furd.

Restricted and Other Cash and Invegiments
Restricted and other cash and investmenis on December 31, 2013 twialed $8.4158.577 as detaiied helow:

Governmental Activities
Restricted cash and invesimenis

Unspent bond procesds . $ 180,415
Library endowment funds 283,013
Total Governmental Activiiies 473 428

Business-type Activities
Menasha Ulilities
Restricted cash and investranis

Bond redemption fund T4AE 488
Capital addition fund 1,348,039
Depreciation fund : 1,571,684
Lease reserve fund B97 381
Utility reserve fund 233,381
Working capital reserve 2,734,887
Chemicsl stabllization fund 348 200
Post emplovment health banefits fund 241,831
Other cash and rvestments
Energy conservation fund 86,386
Ctherinvesimenits 152,602
Tolai Menasha Utllilies 7,863,088
Sewage Trestment
Equipment replacemient 80,000
Total Business-type Activities 7,943.088
Total Restricted and Other Cash and Investments F 8418517

Restricted cash and investments of Mengsha Uliltles were established in scoordance with the
reguirements of debl issues and the capital lesse agreements with WPPI Energy.
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RGTE © - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continuesd)

4. Capital Assets _
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance | Increases Devreases | Balance
Governmerial activities
Capital asseis, notvbeing depreciatad:
Land 5 9040878 & 123,000 % - 8,163.878
Construction in progress 132 484 - 13z 484
Totalwapilal asgels, not being depraciated 8,173,360 123,000 - §.286,360
Caphtal essets, being depraciated:
Buiidings and improvemeants 12.000.676 28,857 = 12028 EET
Machinery and equipment §.483.534 536 B8E 200 808 52328814
infrastructure 78349056 B3 4085 218 626 28 .66 808
Sublotals 48,844,148 1088338 419 432 4% 521052
Less accumulaled depraciation forr
Buildings and improvements 5,687,138 261.30¢ - 5,048,447
Machinery and equipment 5720053 38G.027 183217 5,507,163
Irifrastuciure 12,822 6858 _ 832 405 __21 B.626 13.438.638
Subtotals 24,230,350 1,473,741 411,843 25,282,248
Totsl capital assets, baing depreciatad, nat 24813796 {377,403 - 7,588 24228804
Governmental activives capiis! assets, nat $ 35787156 § 1254403 % 7.588 33,525,164
Less: related long-term debt sutstanding related 1o capital assets
and unamortized premium of $£12,219 20,446 968

et investment incapiial assots
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Motes o Basic Financial Siatements
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NOTE © - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)
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Beginning . Ending
Balance - Ingreases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets. nol being depreciated:
Land & 251021 % 150 % - g 2510366
Diher assels 284 314 4481 - 286 795
Constriction in plogless 1,504,960 B85 .533 1884018 77478
Totat-capial sssels, not béing depreciatad 4,208,490 561,164 1,884 018 2 B76,838
Capital assets, being depraciaied:
Buitdings and improvements 8.641,827 T8H08 - 8,660 533
Improvements ctherihan bulldings 47.8979,71¢ 202 851 374424 46 762,938
Machinery and-edlilpment 17,581.082 755,833 608 137 17,728,778
Subtotals 74202720 2,877,000 G87 561 76,092,249
Less accumulated depreciation far
Electrie distribution. ulility 14641416 1,240 6859 TEEEE TEI01.017
Energy services utiity 110,668 0,265 - 118833
Telecommunitations (fiy 403,161 32,426 - #35,226
Water ufifity ' 7.564 878 838,765 231278 8A472,385
Sewage treatment ufifily 1,102,638 124,767 581 1,226,219
Stormwater utility 1.525.105 93,666 - 1,618,771
Stbtotals 25 347,208 2,338,242 1012817 26,673,531
Total capiial assets, being depraciated, net 48,855 514 537 848 {25 356} AG 418,718
Business-type dotivities capiial assels, net $ 53155004 £  1.088.012 & 19588508 52285 357
Lass: related long-term debt ouistanding related fo capilsl assets 31,073,205
et investment in capilal assels S Py oY




CITY OF MENASHA, WISCORSHN
Notes o Basic Financial Siatemenis
December 31, 2013

NCTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNRDS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged tofunctions of the City as follows:

Governmental aclivities

General government g 52456
Public safety 163,070
FPublic works 843,695
Health ang human services 16,3440
Culkure and recraation 166,735
Conservation and development 380
Subtotal 1,236,688
Capital assets held by the Gity's internal service fund is

charged to various Tunctions based on their usags of the asssis 237 DEZ

Total depraciation expense - governmental aptivities § 1473744
Depreciation Allocated Accumulated
Business-type activilias Expense Deprecigtion | Depreciation
Menasha Utilities
Electric distribution utility 5 1045528 % 185,138 § 1,240,658
Energy services uiility 9.265 - $,285
Telecommunications utility 32,126 - 32126
Vater utility 782 310 56,454 538,764
Sewage treatment ulility 124,762 - 124,762
Stormwater ulility 93,668 - 83.6866
Total $..2087688 § 281687 § 2338242

interfund Receivabie Pavables, and Transiers

n

Interfund receivables and payables between individual funds of the City, as reported in the fund financial

statements, as of December 31, 2013 are detailed below;

interfund trderfund
Receivables Payables
General fund 5 B3804 5 -
Special Revenue Funds
Recycling - 7,008
Btearmn Uity - AL:G80
Capital Project Fund
Gapital Facility - 1,818
Special Revenue Fund
Tax Incremental District No., § - 12,241
Capital Project Funds
Tax nerementis! Disirict Mo, 4 - 260,173
Tax incrementst District No. & 1,801,008 -
Tax Incremental District No. 7 - 474,751
Tax Incrementad District No. 8 199212
Tax incramental District No, 19 - 10887
Tax incrementad District Mo, 12 - 645,844
Tolals £ 1954092 § 1954617

The above interfund recsivables and payabie were recorded to eliminate deficit cash balanees in various
non-major governmental funds. The City anticipates that future cash inflows will be sufficient to ofisst the
current deficit cash balances. in addition, Tax Incremental Distiict No. & has advanced Tax fnorementsl
District No. 10 $221.000 as of December 31, 2013,
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HOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continuead)

Irterfund transfers for the year-ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Transfer io:
Diebt Monmajor Enterprise
Genaral Service |[Governmental] Menasha
Fund Fund Funts o Uikities Total

Transfers from:
fiajor Goveramential Fund

General Fund EN - ¥ - & 74811 § - 5 74811
Diebt Service - - - 1,475,838 1475838
Monmaior Government Funds 156,385 1,824 220 15,858 - 1,696,473
Enterprise Fund

fenasha Utilitizs 582.601 607,504 - - 1,180,185
Totals 730086 T 2134724 % 00668 3 1470836 § 4437415

Transiers were made for the follewing purposes:
Payment in liey of laxes received from Menashia Utiities % 5B2E0
Post emiployment sick leave reserve F4ETY
T reimbursement of prior year advaneed from the general fund 107,000
TID administrative reimbursement 44 385
Marina administrative reimbursement 5,000
TID debt service contribution 4,524,220
Utllities debt service contfibution BOT B4
Steam ulifity debt service 1,475,836
Community development Block grant payment to finance lead paint reduction deficit 15.858
& 4437315
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KNotes to Basic Financiat Siatements
December 31, 2013

NOTEC . DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

.

Long-erm Ohligations
The following is & summary of changes In long-lerm obligations of ihe City for the vear ended
December 31, 2013:

Ouistanding Cuistanding Due Within
111713 iszued Retired 12/31/13 Une Year
Governmental atiivities:
General Obligation Debt
Bonds $ 4368000 % - $  7ELO00C % 600,000 % BOOOO0
Notes 47 405672 786,818 1,202 847 16,989,841 6.29¢ 300
Total Genarat Obligation Debi 21FT0BTS THE. 518 1,067 647 20,588,841 7.099,300
Dyabt premium 41,375 - 25180 12.21%
OPER tiahiliyy 274,088 84,248 - 318,334 -
Compensatod absances 582,173 - 47 454 1,534,716 -
Gavernmenial aclivities
Total long-tenm obligations & 23818310 § B21064 T 2044261 § 27455413 5 7088300

Business-type sclivities:
General Ofligation Debt

Notes $ 18806328 & " & 1222089 % 18664230 §  HA7 1Y
Revenue bonds 15 266,067 1,186,447 @54 538 15,501 001 1,003,083
Due to Town of Menasha 580,047 - 25,841 554,101 25,300
Capiial leases 12,750,284 - 374,195 12,378,084 388,256
Business-type aclivities

Tatallong-term obiipations. § 48502752 % 14B8447 § 2876773 § 47415426 & 2365760

Total interest pald during e véar on long-term debitotated §2,404,146.

General Obligation Debt

The City has issued general obiigation debt to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and capitalization deposit with CVMIC, General obligation debt has been issued for both
governmental and proprietary fund activities. General obligation deb! is reported inthe proprietary funds
if it is expected to be repaid from proprigtary fund revenues.

General obligation debt service maulremants are direct obligations and pledge the Tull faith and oredit of e
City. General obligation debt oulstanding on Desember 31, 2013 totaled ‘38,274,071 and was comprised
of the following issues:

Governmential Activities:
Bonds
51,305,000 lssusd 1211501 $120,000 o 150,000 due annualy through

2017, interest 4.6% to 4.875% i) 585,000
$1,390.000 issued 12/1/03: $115,000 fo $185,000 dus annually beginning in 2012

through 2021 interest 2.9% to 4.86% 1,155,000
¥1,180,000 isgued 1/1/04; $100,000 tv $115,000 due annually through 2018,

interest 3.4% to 4 3% 515,000
$2.565,000 issued 6/15/08; $385,000 o $475,000 due annuaily through 207185;

interest 4.25% 10 4.65% 4365 000
Total Bonds 3,600,000
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WOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Motes
$2,490,000 issued 6/15/05; §2.480,000 due in 201 4; interest 4 0% $ 2480000
$2,.345 000 issued 8/1/06: $1.885.000 due in 2014 interest 4.25% to 5.00% 1,685,000
$5,280,000 issued 8/1/08; $175,000 10 $2,300,000 due annually
through 2017; interest 4.25% to 4.40% 3,880,000
$1,170,000 issued B/8/12; & balloon payment dus BIB/14 of $1,170,000;
interest 2.75% 1,170,000
$1.480,000 issued 8/15/12; $131,364 10 $166,404 due annually
through 2022, interest 3.00% 1,334,383
F1 170,678 issued 8/15/12; $117.252 10 $9144,202 due annually
through 2022, interest 3.00% 1,088,002
53,820,000 issued 8/15/12Z; 200,371 to $333,523 dus annually
through 2027 interest 4.00% 3.664,135
$900.000 issued 8/158/12, 580,142 t0 $110.8581 due annually
through 20271, interest 3.00% 801,485
$350,000 issued 10/9/12; $30.502 10 $44 183 dus annually
through 2021; nterest 3.00% 350,000
3786816 issued 171/22/13,$18,182 10-859,448 dus ennugily
from 2015 through 2033 interest 4.25% 788,818
Total Notes 16,089,841
Total Governmental Activitiss OQuistanding General Obligation Debt 20,585 841
Business-type Activities;
Motes
$2.786,026 issued 8/15A12; $144,017 1o $200,7186 due annually
through 2031; interest 4.0% 2842008
$3.656,754 issued 8/15/12; $198,297 w0 $273,321 dus annually
through 2030; interast 4 0% 3,457 ABY
$13.463,548 issued 8/15/12; $878,785 to §1,145,752 due annuslly
through 2027, interest 4 0% 12,584 764
18,684,230
Total General Obligation Dabt § 38274071
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NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS [Continued)

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debi of $38,274,071 on
December 37, 2013 are detailed below:

Year Ended Governmenial Activities Business-type Activities Totals
December 31 Principal | interest Principal | interast Principal Interest

2014 £ 7088300 ¢ 547500 % 937,200 % 747400 § B036500 & 1,284800
215 1,885,800 460,100 874 700 704,200 2.870.800 1,176,060
2046 1,881,200 377400 1,011,800 672,700 2983100 1,050,160
20%7 3,323,500 237,300 1,054,200 630,400 4 377760 BGT. 700
2018 838,000 202,800 1,096,200 588,300 2.032,300 791,160

20142023 3,508 400 574,800 6,174,100 2,248,900 8,772,500 2,823,800

2024-2028 EAB1,600 186,000 6,320,500 910,800 7,802,100 1.086.800

2028-2033 273,841 21,700 1,118,330 78,300 1.388 271 101,000

20589841 % 2577700 § 186884230 % E587.700 § 30274077 5 9185400

For governmenial activities, the olthier long-term liabllities are genarally funded by the genera] furd.

Leaal Margin for New Debt .

The City's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December 31, 2013 Was
$10,839.698 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the City $ 874,854,000
Statutory fimitation percentage (5%
General obligation debt imitation, per Section B7.03 of the

Wisgonsin Siglutes 48744 700
Tota! cuistanding general obligation debt applicabie 1o debt limitation $ 39274071
Less. Amounts:available for financing general ohiligation debt

Dabt service fund 1,454 068
Met cuistanding genera obligation deblt applicable (o debt milation 37,805,002
Legel Margin for New Bebl $ 10,638,698
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MOTEC - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDE (Continued)

Revenue Bonds
Revenue bond debt service reguiremants are financed from operations of the Citvis enterprise fund.
Revenue bonds outstanding on December 31, 2013 tolafed $15,801,001 and were compesed of the
following issues:

Revenue Bends
$1°076.067 Clean Water Fund Loan dated 11/24/04; $981,397 received;

$45 844 10 562,122 dus annually through 2024 interest 2.365% $ 609634
£12.061,890 Clean Waier Fund Loan dited 4/26/068; $12,061.890 recsivsd,

$585 443 10 §812,092 due annually through 2025; interest 2.365% 8,507,385
$778,363 Clean Water Fund Loan dated-4/11/07; 3384, 158 receivexd;

$18 485 to 526,673 due annually through 2026, interest 2.475% 594,066
$2.733,387 Clearn Water Fund Loan dated 3/8/08: $2.530,286 raceaived;

$11%2,462 {0 $163,466 dus annually through 2027, interest 2 365% 1,874,718
3678,908 Clean Water Fund Loan dated 4/22/09; $644 286 receivad;

§27 185 to 542,534 dugannually through 2028, interest 2.668% ) 534,055
$872.956 Clean Water Fund Loan dated T1/9/M11; $681,027 received;

$31,938 10 $49.830 due annually through 2031 interest 2.4% TE3.972
$233.307 issued 2011 -2012:.89,808 to $14.512 due annually through 2031,

mntarest 2.20% FHB.4590

£B348,000'Clean Water Fund Loan dated £/13/12;.53617,200 receivad

825 538 10 $37,786 due annually through 2032, interest 2.2% 594,432

4,276,480 Clean Water Fund Loan dated 7/25/12; $1.,237 435 receivad:

$51,341 to $75.860 due annually through 2032; interest 2.2% 1,484,876
$504. 200 Glean Water Fund Loan dated 772413, 429,308 received;

$46,596 10'$27 152 due annually through 2033, interest 2.82% 420,275
Total Revenue Bonds & 15,501.001

Annual principal and interest maturities of the sbove ulstEnding erterprise fiidd revenue behds of
$15,501.001 on December 31, 2013 are shown below:

Year Ended Business-ivpe Activities.
Dagember 31 Frincipal | Interest | Total
2014 $ 1,003,992 $ 354449 5§ 1,35B442
2018 1,027 BOG 330,873 1,388,773
2018 1,052,980 308,334 1,358,431
2017 1,077,060 281408 1,358,105
2018 1,402,600 255,284 1,357,881
20482023 5,917,300 867,088 8,784 388
F024-2028 3,559,100 231,853 3,796,753
20282032 764,108 35,128 796,236

§ 15501001 & 2662008 % 18162009

There asre @ numbsr of complisnce reguirements asseciated with these debt issugs. The City s In
compliancs with those requirements.
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HOTEC - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)

Caplial Leases

The City is obligated under various leases accounted for as capitsl leasas that were used to finance the
acquisition of capital assets. Presented below is a schedule of fulure minimum lease payments reguired
under the capial leases, and the preseni value of the net minimum iease payments at December 31,

2078

Buasiness-type

Year Ended Activities

Decembear 31 Frincipat
2014 § 1191848
20158 1,191,846
2016 1,184,048
2047 1,181,846
2018 1,181,846
2016-2023 5,885,732
2024-2028 5,858,732
2025-2031 2,780,673
Total Payments 20,658 867
Amount representing inlerest 8,283 773
Frincipal amount cutstanding g 12376084

Leased plant, included in eleciric capila! assets, consists of the following;

Land § 522,728
Buildings 2378697
improvements other than buildings 17,450,704
Eguipment 5,004,265
Accumutated depraciation (13,101,080
nat leased plant $ 12348 308

Since WPP! s considered & related parly, the leased cepiial assels have continued o be recorded ot
iheir historical cost along with the related accumulsted depreciation to date. Bepreciation on the leased
ptart is ncluded in depreciation expense in the financial siatements. Menashg Utilities fully expedts 1o
reacquire the capiial assefs al the conclusion of the lease. The Wisconzin Public Services Commission
has also allowed the jeased capiial assels o continue to beincluded as part of all utility capital assets for
the purposes of the annual payment in lleu of tax calculation.

LOSS.on tmpairment of Assels

During 2013, the City of Menasha along with Menasha Utiliies solicited proposals from outside parties to
determing-potential interest in the acouisition or use of the former steam plant property, which Menasha
Utitities reports on #is Slatement of Net Position as property held for sale. Based on the proposals
recelved, it was determined that the carrving value of the property held for sale should be reduced 1o a
more reaslizable amount.  As = resull, it was determined that the fair value of the asset would be
decreasad by $10,408,598 (o a canrving amount of $2,044,832,

As discuss in note D12, the City subsequently sold the former steam utllity property for $400,000, which
approximated the cost o remediate environmental liabilities within the property, A loss belween the net
realizable value, as determined in March, 2014 and the subsequent sale will be recognized as a loss on
disposal of property in the City's 20714 financial statements.
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KOTE D - GTHER THFORIBATION

1. Menashs Utilities Segmentinformation

Menasha Ulilities has three operations thal reguire segment information fo be reporied. Segment
information for Steam Production, Electric Distribution, and Water Distribution follows:

Electric
Steam Distribution Waler
Agsels
Carent % 204800 % 5712664 § 9390584
Due from other funds 0,458 - 495143
Rasricled - 4054 854 2,882 827
Moncurrent
et Gapitel Assels - 4,178,507 24,151,607
Property held forsale Z.043 860 - -
Advance fo atherfunds - 1,037 124 -
Totad Assels 2.257 808 258750943 25482 667
Deferred Duifiows of Resotirpes '
Tower péinting - - 53,520
Ligbilities
Current 536,745 4805 344 1,374,673
Dusio otherungds - 525,068 -
Noncurrent
Advance from ather fuids : - - 506 188
Due within one year 834,147 399,256 886,657
Due in more than one year 15208074 11,976 838 13,485 757
Total Liabilities 16,578 0668 17.801.906 16,253,575
Met Position
Metinvestment in capital assets ' - 1800492 5. 785.543
Restricted ‘
Debiservice - - TAE 488
Lease obligation - 897,381 -
Piant replacemant - 1,348,038
Linrestricted {14,321 060 4028 204 1,758 528
Total Net Posltien $ (1432106801 5 B.074037 & §207 806
{Cortinued)
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MOTE D - OTHERINFORMATION (Continued)

Electric
Steam - Disiribution ¢ Water

Ciperating Revenuss

Charges for seivices & = $ 45280086 § 5828807

{ither - 185,620 95,627

Totel Cperating Revenuss - 45 4685708 5728734
Operating Expenses

Operating - 47 831,834 2,873,181

[repreciation i 1045 526 782.310

Total Opersting Expensas - 43 677,360 3455 471
Gperating income (LHss) o ~ 188,346 0 4273283
hNeroperating Income {Expenses}

interest revenus - 58 548 8,606

Merchandising and jobbing - £.818 3,700

Interest and fiscal charges [B4E,385) B18470: {405,388}

Miscellansous 1,483,307 (827702} {27.958)

Total Nonoperating Income (Expenses) 814,822 {1,580,406) {422.040)
Income Before Contributions, Extracrdineny

Losses and Transiers B4, 822 207,940 1,851,223
Customer contributions - 18,873 7E 783
Transfers-ou . 4616,080; (646.227}
Change i Net Position B14.820 {388 ,187) 1,280,758
Forgiveness of Debl - -
Loss on impairment of Assels 10,406,598,
Mt Position - danuary 1 (4728 3843 8462 204 8,091 847
fet Pogltion -~ December 37 § (143210807 & B.074 027 & 9.202 806

2. Component Unit
This report contains the Menasha Redevelopment Authority {RDAY which i included a8 » domporient
unil. Financlal information s preserted as 2 discrele column in the stetement of net position and the
staterient of activities.

iraddition to the basic financial staternents ant the preceding riotes o financial statements which apply,
the following are adifitional disclosures relgisd o the RDA,

a} Cashand Invesiments: Al vear end, thegarrying amount of the RDA's deposits and investments was
$241,232, This amountis included in the totals presanied in Note C1.
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ROTE D - OTHER INFORNATION {Continued}
3. Joint Ventures
Menasha-Neensh Municipal Court
The City of Neenah and the City of Menasha have enacied jpini ordinances cresting the Menasha-
MNesnah Municipal Court. Each Zity's proportionate share in the annual operations s equal fo the

percentage share of citations issued by that city comparad to the towl citations issued by boih cities singe
the inception of the municipal courl, The breakdown as of December 31, 2013 was as Tollows:

MNurmber of
Mumber of Citations
2013 Bince
ity Cilations Inception % of Total
Oty of Menasha 1,856 23,583 40,7 %
City of Neenah 3125 34,424 58.3%
Totals 5081 52 Q07 100.0%

The municipal court prepares an.annual budget and submits it to Neenah ang Menasha as part of the
cities’ annual budgeting process. The cilies esch pay 2 proporiionaie share of the municipal court
budget. In addition to its proportionate share, Menashe also pays the City of Neensh an annual
administrative fee. The adminisirative fee is reviewed armually. The City of Neenah has established a
Municipal Court fund {arragency fund) to:account for municipal court aciivity,

As of December 31, 2013, the court had & deficit of $230,937. The allocation of this deficit iz as follows;

City of Menasha % 95,838
City of Neenah 135,089
Total § 230,837

It is the intent that the court will repay these funds.

Firancial information of the court as of Decembar 31, 2013 is included in the City of Neenah's financial
statements as supplementary informstion. Separsie financial statements are not available. The Gity of
Wenasha does not have an equity interest in this organization,

Meenah-Menazhe Fire Rescue

On January 1, 2003, the City of Nesnah and City of Menasha merged their fire depafiments. The merged
fire department s knewn ag ihe Neenah-Menasha Fire Rescue INMFR). It provides Tire and rescue
services to the citizens-df both cemmunities.

The commumities share in the annual operation of the fire department as follows: Chiy of Menashg ~
38 48% and Cityof Neenzh - 80.51%.

Anrally as paft of the budget process, the joint finance and personne! commities wili re-evaluate the
cost distribution formula based on the following five factors: 1) population, 2} equalized value, 3) annual
firefrescue calls, ) square miles, and 5) square foolage of all buildings with each commiunity.

The Joint Fire Commission consgists of sk members with three year staggered terms. Neenzh and
Menasha sach appoint three members to the commission. The appointees are not elected officials of the
municipaliies.
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The oversight of the day-to-day operations and budgetary matters of the Neenah-Menashe Eire Rescue
are conducted by the Joint Fire Finance and Personnel Committes. The recommendstions of the Joint
Finance and Personnel Committee shall be acted upon separately by the common councis of both
Neenah and Menasha and are effective only upon concurrence of both councils,

The City of Neenah Is responsible for administering and accouniing for all funds received and disbursed.
Aoseparate fund (an agency fundyhas been astablished by the City of Neenah o acoourd for fire services.

The City accounts for ite share of the operations in the gensralfung, The Citv of Menashs does not have
an equity interest i this organization, Financtal information related to the Neenab-Menashea Fire Rescue
as of December 31, 2013 & includec in the City of Neenah's financial statements as supplementary
information. Separate financial statemanis are not available.

4. Retiremment Commitments

All eligible City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). z cost-sharing,
multiple-empioyer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees initialiv emploved
by & participating WRS emplover prior to Jduly 1, 2011, expected 1o work gt least B00 hours = year {440
hours for teachers and school district educationa! support employees) and expected to be emploved for at
least one year from employee’s date of hire, are efigible 1o participaie in the WRS. Al employees inftially
employed by a parficipating WRS employer on or after July 1. 2011, and expected 1o work at Isast 1200
hours & year (880 hours for teachers and schoo! district educational support emplovees) and expected to
be emploved for at least one year from emplovee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS,
Employees hired {o work nine or ten months per year, {(e.g. teachers contracis), bu! expected to return
year after yaarare considered to have meat the ons-year requirement.

Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011, the empioves required contribution
was changed ¢ one-half of the actuarielly determined confribution rate for employees in the Genersl
category, inciuding Teachers, and Executives and Electec Officials. Required contributions for protactive
employees are the same rate as general empiovees. Emplovers are required to contribute the remainder
of the actuarially determined contribution raie, The emplover may not pay the emploves required
contribution uniess provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement. Contribution raies are ae

foliows:
2013
Empioves Empiover
General {including Teachers) §.65% 6.65%
Executives & Elected Officials 7.0% 7.0%
Protective with Social Sacurity 8.685% 8.75%
Frotective without Socia!l Security’ 6.65% 12.35%

The payroll for City employees covered by the WRS for the vear ended December 31, 2013 was
$10,190,253; the employer's fotal payroll was $8.819,688. The total required coniribution for the YEED
ended December 31, 2013 was 51,746,887, which consisted of $1,1186,356 or 10.96% of covered payroll
from the empioyer, and $630,525, or 8.19% of covered payroll from employees. Total contributions for the
years ended December 317, 2012 and 2011 were $1,487,487 and §1,467,058, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Empioyees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employess with lass than 25 vears of service, 53 for protective pocupation employvees with more than 25
veers of service) are entiled o receive a retirement benefll. Emplovees may retire gt age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employess) and receive aciuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: {1} final average earnings, (2} years of creditable service, and {3) & formula factor. A final
average earnings is the average of the employee’'s three highest vear” sarnings. Employees terminating
covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and, by doing se, forfeit ali rights to any subseguent benefit. For employees
keginning participation on or after January 1, 1890 and no longer actively emploved o or after April 24,
1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for 2 retirement annuity.
Farticipants emploved prior to 1880 and on or after April 24, 1988 and prior o July 1, 2011 are
immediately vested. Participants who intially became WRS eligible on or after Julv 7, 2011 must have
five vears of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for emplovees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statuies,

The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be oblained by wiiting fo the Department of
Emplovee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7831, Madison, WIB3707-7831.

& Wisconsin Public Power Incorporated Contract (WEPH
The City's electric utility purchases ifs eleciric reguirements from the Wisconsin Public Power incorporated
(WPPL. WPPlis a municipal electric company and political subdivision of the State of Wisconsin created by
contract Dy #s members on SeptemberB, 1980 pursuant io the Municipal Electric Company Act,
Sec 66.072 of the Wisconsin Statutes (the Act). WPPI's purposes include providing am adequats,
economical and refiable supply of electric energy o its members,

The City is one of 50 members of WPPI localed throughout the State of Wisconsin, On December 31,
1988, each of WPPl's members, including the City of Menasha, commenced purchasing efectric service
from WPPI under a new Long-term Power Supply Conftract for Participating Members {the Long-term
Contract} under which WPP| has agreed to sell and defiver to each member, and-each member has agreed
io take anc pay for, the electric power and enargy requirements of the members for an initial thirty-five (35)
yearterm. Thecontract was amended during 2002 to extend the term of the coniract through 2037.

Under the Long-term Contract, the City and the other members of WPP! are required to pay for ail power
and energy reguirements supplied or made available by WPF! at rates sufficient to cover all of WPPIg
revenue requirement which inchudes power supply costs, adminisirative expenses anc debt service on
outstanding bonds. WPPl's subsequent year's rates and operating budget are approved annually by its
Board of Directors, which consists of representatives from each member municipality. The City has agreed
to charge rates to the retail rate pavers of iis electric system sufficient to meet #s- obligation 1o WPPL The
Long-term'Coniract provides that ali payments to WPPT under the Contract constitute operating expenses of
the City's electric system payabie from any operating and maintenance fund established by the City.

The Long-term ‘Contract may be terminated by aither parly upon five years prior written notice efective at
the end of the initiat thirty-five vear term. or at any other time théreafier, provided that no WPP! honds are
outstanding &l the tme of the proposed termination and certain other contract provisions ars met.

The elsclric operation purchases power through Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. for distribulion 1o s
customers. Tolal purchases under this arrangement amounied o approximately $40.0 milion in 2043
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8. Risx Mansgement ,

The Cily is exposed to various risks of fuss related o torts; thefl, damage o destruction of assets: errors or
omissions: injuries to employees; of acts of God. The City has chosen to retain & portion- of the risks
through seif-nsurance programs and has &lso purchased insurance 1o transferother risks lo oulside parties.
Paymenis of premiums for these policies are recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of the
City. insurance setflements have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the pastihree vears nor has
there been any significant reduction In Insurance coverage compared 1o the prior year. A descristion of the
City's risk management programs fallows

Properiv and Lisbility Insurance

During 1887, the City, together with cenain otherunits of governmeant within the State of Wisconsin, creatad
the Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC), a joint venture. to provide liahility insurance
services {o its members. The City 1 partially seff-insured for tiability insurance and pays premiums t©
CVMIC for its excess liabllity insurance coverage. The actuary for CVMIC determines premium charges to
its mermbers requireC 1© pay the expected claims and loss adiustment expenses. CVMIC's ongoing
operational expenses, other than loss adjustment expenses, are apportioned pro rats 1o each member,
CvMIC provides general iability, police and nurses professional liability, public official’s liabllity and vehicle
liability coverage for the City. The City's self-insured retention fimit is $25,000 for sach poourrence with 2
maximuny limit-of $100,000 annually. Premidgms paid o CVMIC for insurance coverage are racorded in 2
self-nsurance internal service fund.  The seff-nsurance internal service fund charges various City
depariments and operations for their partion of Insurance coverage for the vear.

The claims reported in the fund at December 31, 2013 is based on the requirements of GASE Statement
Mo, 10, which requires that 2 liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the basic
purpose financial statements indicates that it is probable that e lability has been incurred at the date of the
basic financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonebly estimated. On December 31,
2013, the property and liability insurance internal service fund has available $180.327 for future unreported
slaims. Changes in the fund's claim Hability amount for 2012 and 2013 follow:

Current
Clgims and
Liahility Changesin Claim Liability
January'1 Estimates Pavmenis | December 37
2012 5 32,868 % {1,569 § 2897 % 3,258
2013 3.258 26,835 30,79 -
48

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 54



CITY OF MENASHA, WISCORSBIN
Motes o Basic Financia! Sistements
Drecember 31, 2013

HOTE D - OTHER INFORRATION (Continued)

Dental insurance

City employees. COBRA emplayess, refiress and empiovee dependeris are eligible for dental benefits from
z dental insurance internal service fund, Funding is provided by charges to City departments, employess
and retirees. Fund expenses consist of payments {o a third-party administrater for dental daims and
administrative fess. The claims liability of §7,049 reported in the fund at December 31, 2013, is based on
the reguirements of GASE Statement No. 10, which reguires that & liability for claims be reportec i
information prior o the issuance of the basic finencial statements indicates thatl It is probable that @ Habillyy
has been ihcurrgd at the date of the basic finencial statements and the amouni of the joss can be
reasonably estimated. On December 31, 2013, the denidl insurance interngl service fund has avaliabie
$12,181 for fulure anreported cleims. Changes in the fund's daims liability amount for 2012 and 2013

foliow:
Current
Claims and
Liability Changesin Claim ' Liahility
January 1 Estimales Payments | Decamber 31
2012 3 5816 § 117888 § 118646 § 4.069
2013 4,069 109,988 107,006 7.048

7. Other Post-Emplovment Benefits
Flan Description: - The City provides healih care insurance coveragefor employees who retire untt they
reach the age of 65. The retired employee contributes 100% of the premium for family coverage of 100%
of the premium for single coverage. There are 172 active and 17 ratired employeas in the plan,

Annual OFPEB Cost and Net OPES Obligation - The City's annual other post-employment benefit (OPER)
cost {expenselis calcuiated based on the annual reguired contribution (ARC}, .and the amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters :.of GASE Statement 45, The ARC represenis & level of
funding thal, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projecited to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfurided actuarial liabilities over ‘2 period not to exceed thirly vears. The following (able shows the
componants-ofthe City's annuatl OPEB cost for the year, the amount gciually contriblied tothe plan, and
changss in the City's net OPER. obligation.

| Compganent _ | Amount |
Annual reguired contribution $ 98,787
Interest on net OPEB 10,218
Adjustment o anviual reguired contribution {13.858)
Annual OPEB cost {(expanse) 84,148
Coniributions made 1,800
Change in net OPEE obiligation 84,248
GPEE obiigation - beginning of vear 224 086
OPEER obligation - end of year 5 218,334

The annhual required contribution for the current year was determinaed ez part of the Janwary 1, 2012
actuarial valuation using the prolected unit credit method, The sciuarial assumptions included (a) 4.58%
discount rate, and (b} projecied salary increases at4.00%.

48

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 55



CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIK
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Decembear 31, 20713
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The acuarial methods and assumptions used inciude techniques that are designed {o reduce the effect of
shoriterm volatility in actuarial acorued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. consistent with & fong-
term perspective of the calculations. The unfunded actuarial acorued fiability is being amortized as & level
dollar amount of projected payroll. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013 is 30 years,
and the remaining amount is $771,308

Trend information - The City's annual OPEE cost, the perceniags of the annual OPER cost oonirbutad io
the plan, and the net OPER obligation for 2008 through 2013 Is as follows:

Fiscal Annugl Percentage Of Annusl MNet OPER
Year Ended OFER Cost CPEB Cost Confributad Oibligation
127312071 & 76,616 A8 91% 5 134,306
127312012 S1,870 2.48% 224 086
121312013 96,148 1.98% 318,334

Funded Slaius and Funding Progress - As of January 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial vaiuation daig,
the Clty's unfunded actuarial accruad lability (UABLY was $771,308. The annus! payroll for active
employees covered by the plan for the 2011 fiscal vear was $8,362 803 for a ratio of the UAAL 1o coversd
payroll of 8.22%.

Actuarial valustions of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the vaiue of reporied amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, such as assumptions about
future terminations, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Actuarially determined amounis are subjectto
continual revision as actuarial results are compared with past experience and new estimates are mads
ghout the future.

Actugrial Meathods and Assumptions - Projections of bensefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the pian as understood by the emplover and plan members) and inciude the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit
costs between the smplover and ptan members 1o that point. The actuarial methods and 2ssumptions
used include technigues that are designed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities anc the actugrial value of assets, consistent with the longsterm perspective of the caloulalions.

In the Jdanuary 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included & rate of 4.56% (0 discount expected liahilities o the valugtion date. The initiai
healthcare trend rate was 10% for medical, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% for meding!
after six years. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013 was 30 vears,
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g,

14.

Tax Incremental Districts

The City currently maintaing separate special revenue and capiial project funds to account for eleven Tax’
incremental Districts (TID) created in accordance with Section 68 1105 of the Wisconsin Siatutes. Al the
time the Dislricts were creaied, the properiy tax base within each District was "frozen” and increment taxes
resulimg from increases to the property tex base are used to finance District improvements, including
principal and interest on general obligation debt 1ssued by the City ¢ finance such improvements. Al
eligible project expenditures for the Districts have been completed for the TID No. 1, and TID No. 3 projects.
Therefore, special revenue funds are ulilized to account for iax increment and other revenues used o
finance principal and interest paymenis on outsianding general obligation debt applicable to these Districts.
The Statutes allow eligible project costs 1o be incurred up o five vears prior o the maximum termination
date. The City's TID No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, No. 7. No. 8. No. 9 No. 10, Mo, 11, and No. 12 were created in
1987, 18598, 1988, 2002, 2004, 2004, 2008 2008, and 2011 respeciively. and therefore are stll eligibie to

incur project costs. Accordingly. TID No. 4, 5.6, 7, 8, 5, 10 11, and 12 are accounied for as capital proiects
funds.

Since craation of the above Disiricis, the City has provided various financing sources {0 each TH and has
also recorded eligible TID project costs in other funds of the City.  The foregomng amounts are not recorded
as Habllities in the TID special revenue and capital projects funds but-can be recovered by the City from
future excess fax increment revenues. Detadl of the amounts recoverable (surplus) by the City as of
December 31, 2013 from future excess tax incremestt revenues follows:

Net Unreimbursed Project Costs
Tax Incremental District No. 4 3 134 576

Tax Incremental District No. 3 7.416
Tax incremental District No. & 840,822
Tax Incrementat District No. & 278,917
Tax Incremental District No. 6 274,805
Tax incremental District No. 7 1.867.652
Tax Incremenial District No. B 938.078
Tax incremental District No. € 3,686 401
Tax increamental District No. 40 153,554
Tax incremental District No. 11 £31.724
Tax. Incremental District No, T2 816 944

% 11.631.175

The intent of the City is to recover the above amounts from future TID surplus funds, i any, prior o
termination of the respective Districts. The City has amended the project plan of District No. 3 to include
iransfers to Distncts No, 1 and 2,

Major Customer _ o
During 2013, the Gity's eleciric uillity biled BCA Tissus §18.825,237. This represents 43% of slechic
gility operating revenue. No other utility customer actournited for mote than 10% of operating revenue,

Property Tax Levy Limit

Wisconsin state statutes provide for & hmit on the property ax levies for all Wisconsin oities, villages,
towns and counties. Forthe 2013 and 2014 budgetvears, the hereass o the maximum sllowable {ax levy
is limited to the grealer of the percentage change ivthe Clly's Janwary 1 egudiized valueas a result of nat
new construction. The setual it for the City for the 2013 budget was 047%. The actua imi for the
City for the 2044 budget was G:42%. Debt service for debt authorized dfter July 1, 2005 s exempt from
the lewylimit. In agdition, Wisconsin statutes aliow the limit to be adjusted for the increase in debl service
authorized priot o July ", 2005 and in certain gither sifualions.
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CITY OF MENASRKA WISLONSIN
Motes o Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2043

HOTE D~ GTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

11, Gontingencies

&,

The City's vaiyation and taxing power secure a portion of the ouisianding long-term debi of the
Meensh-Menasha Sewerage Commission, & joint venture created bv the City and six other
murticipalities. The Cily would be liable in the uniikely cvent that the Commission defaulted on the
dabl.

The Citv participates in & number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are
subjectic program compliance audits by the grantors or thelr representatives.  Accordingly, the City's
compliance with applicable grant reguirements will be egtgblishad af some fulure date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disaliowsd by the granting zuencies tannot be delermined st
this time slthough e City expects suchamounts, if any. fo be immaterial.

From tme{o Uime, the City is party 1o other various-perdling claims and legal preceedings. Although
the outcome of such matters cannetl be forecast with certainty, it is the-opinicn of management and
the City attorney that the likelihood is remote that:any such claims or proceedings will have a material
adverse effedt onthe City's financial position orresciis of operations except as indicated below,

12. Subseguent Events

.

The City contracts with Neenah-Menashe Sewerage Commission (the “Commission™ fer sewage
treatment services and is gontingently liable for costs incurrec by the Commission, nprior years, the
Commission and the City have been named as atesponsible party in the Fox Riverclean up project.

On March 26, 2014, the United States lodged with the:Court & consent decree betwesan It and the
Commission, Menashz Corporation, WTIME Company. City of Appleton. CBC Coating, Inc., U.S,
Faper Mills Corp. {Settling Defencants) resolving ali ¢laims: asssrted against:the Setling Defendants
in the United States case by the United Siates, Wisgensin and natura! resources rusiees of the site
for a2 combined cash payment of $584 miliion. The Commission's share of the seffiement s $5.2
milion, The Commission entered’into & settiementi agreement with its primary and excess insurance
carriers whereby its Ingurers are paying 54,675,000 of the Commission’s share. The Commission's.
remaining share of the sstilement tolaling $525,000 was paid by the Cities of Meenzh and Menasha,
wilty City of Menasha respansible for §262,500 of the $525,000 payment

The Gity entered into a Purchase antd Development Agreement dated June S, 2014 for the transfer,
repurgosing and reuse of the former sieam ulllity property. The property-was sold for $1 with 'z 5400
thousand personal guarsritee o remediate the property of environmential labilities whish the Citywas
responsible.  In fransferring the feciity to the buyer, the City of Menasha reslized the following
benefits:

@

The ongoing costs for maintainirig the Taglity in.2 mothbalied staie will be eliminated.

The gosts for environmenial cleanup and building demoiftion oosts will be avoided.

The Buyer assumed the snvironmental risk.

The Menasha Power Plant has bean idenfified as & historically significant structure whoss

nistorical and architectural integrity will be pressrvad.

s The transfer will enable the adaptive reuse of the faclity for food processing creating jobs and
income obportunities for Menashe residents.

= The szies, income and employment associated with this business i estimated o have o $28.7
million economic impact on the local economy,

«  The ansfer will bring formerly tex exempt properly onio the tax role helping to finance city
facilities and services,

« The electric pewer and waler consumplion associated with this business will increase revenues to

the Menashe Electric ano Water Utilities.

#® @ &
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIHY
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
Forthe Yesr Ended December 31, 2013

E (4)
@) | Unfunded UAsL
Actuarial l Actuarial as g
Aciuarial {1 Aoorused {3 s Acorued Pagrcentage
Vatugtion Actuarfal Liability Funded | Liabitity {B} of Coverad
Date Yalue of {RALY Tntry Hatio _ {UAAL; Covetred Payrol
December 31, Assets Age Normai (i b @iy Pavrol (4) {5}
2008 - 752614 B.50% § TEGE14 § 10.B54.888 7.20%
2012 771,308 DO0% % 771,308 B.362 802 B22%

years is not available,

The City implamerted GABE StaternentiNo. 45 forthe fiscal yvear entied December 31, 2008, information for prior
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
SCHEDULE OF EMPLCOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

Year Ended Employer Annual Required Percentage

December 31, Contributions Coniribution (ARC) Confributed
2017 ) 37476 § 85,104 44 04%
2012 2.280 B4 153 ZA2%
2018 1,800 Bg 787 1.80%

The Gity implemented GASE Sialement Mo, 45 for the fiscal year-ended December 31,
2008, Information for prior vagrs is not availahie.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used 1o account for the proceeds -of specificrevenue sources (other than major capital
projects or expendable trust) that are legally restricied io expenditures Tor specific purposes. The City utilizes
special revenus funds to resord financial transactions pettaining o the following activities:

Housing Rehab
To accourit for activity of loans made 1o logal hemeaowners that were originally financed by an economic
development grant received by the City from the Wisconsin Department of Development.

Community Developmeant Block Grant
To sucouni for grarnt procesds recelved by the Clty from the Wiscensin Depaitment of Adminfstration o
beused to make lsans ' local homeowners.

Marina Operations
To sccount for collections from the Cily manins wsed 1o finance relsled dishursements for personnel,
supplies and improvemeanis.

Tax incremental Districts {T1Ds)
To account for tax increment revenues of TID Mo 1, and Mo, 3 for which the construction period for
sligibie projects has elapsed. Al project sxpenditures were origindliy tecorded incapital projecis funds,

Park Development. _ _
To sceount Tor grants received and other colledtions 1 be used for the development of City parks,

Recycling
To account for the properly texes levied and intergovernmental grants received to fimance ‘the Clty's
recycling activities.

Post-Employment Sick Leave Reserve
To account for the accumulation of resources to be used to reimburse Gity employees Tor accumulated
sick leave al date of retirement.

Lead Paint Reduction
To accourtt for granis recsived in prior years for lead paint rehabilitation work, closed with a transter from
the Community Development Blogk Grant.

Library Endowmeant
Toaccount for funds held by the City library.

Hatlie Minor Scholarship
Toascmant for funds held by the City for {Re purposes of providing scholarships from investrment ncome.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continuesd)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Public Safety Donations
Toaccount for donations received by the City,

Heckrodt Nature Center
Toaccount for denations received by the Cily.

Senior Center Mamuorials
To account for donations received by the City.

Senior Genter Fund Raising
Toascount for collections and disbursements relaiing 1o activities offered hy'the senior center.

Storm Uity
This fund accounts for resources used in the closing of the steam utifity plant.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital project funds are used o account for financial resources to be used for the acauisition or consiruction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. The City ulilizes capital projects funds to
record financial transactions pertaining fo the Tollowing activities:

Capital Projects
To account for proceeds of general obligation debt used to finance capital projects.

Capital Facility
To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for bulltding improvement projects of the Gty

Capital Improvemenis
To account for the acoumulation of resources 1o be used for capital improvement projects-of the City.

Tax inoremental Districts (TiD's)
To account for the activity of TID Ne. 4, Mo. §, No. 8, 'Na. 7, No. 8, No g, No. 18, Neo. 11 and No. 12
which are stilt eligible-to incur construction costs.

Readways at River's Edge
Teaccount for the accumulation of resources 1o be used for capilal improvements on roadways.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

infernal service funds are used to atgcount for the financing of goods or services provided by one department io
other depariments of the City, or to-other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. The City utilizes
internal service funds o record fimangial fransactions pertaining to the Tollowing acivilies:

Cily Garage
Toaccount for services provided o other City departments by the Department of Public Works.

Property and Liagbility Insurance
To account for funds held by the Gity, generated by charges o other Cily depariments, to finange
property and lishility claims levied against the City.

Dental Insurance
To account forfunds held by the City generated by charges o other City depariments, employees, and
refirees, {ofinance dental slaims-of Gity empioyees, retirees, and their dependenis,

Informgtion Technology
To account for services proviisd fo ether City depariments by the {information technology deparimant.
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ASSETS

Cash and investmeanis

Other assety

CGapital assets, nondenreciable

Land

Construction inprogress
Capiial assets, gepraciable

Suildings

fMachinery ard sguipment
Less: Accumuizsied depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payabile

TOTAL LIARILITIES

NET POSITION

Netinvestment in capitel assets

tnrestricted

TOTAL NET POBITION

CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Combining Statermnant of Net Posttion
Intarnal Sarvice Funds
December 31, 2013

Froperty and

Ligbility Dantal Information .

City Garage trisurance insurance Technology - Totals
& 100483 % 180,827 % 19230 5 5&382 § 358 432
- 1,031,220 . - 131,220
B4 218 - - - 44,278
132,484 - - - 132 484
1,000,842 - w 1,000 642
8,656 288 - - £.656,288
{4.808.842) - - - {4 809,842}
3,124,757 1,211,547 19,230 58,382 4,413,440
26,018 - 048 38406 72471
26,018 - 7.04% 2g40e 72471
3,023,788 - - - 3,023,758
74,487 1,211,547 12351 18,988 1,317,181
3 B30BE2E5 & 41211547 & 1251 % 18,886 5 4 340 969
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

lrternal Senvice Funids

For the Year Ended Degember 31, 2013

Oiperating Revenues
Charges forservices

Operating Expenses
Operation and mainienance
insurance payments andclaims
Deprecigtion
Total Opearating Expenses

Operating income
Konoperating Revenues (Eypenses)
investment mcoms
Loss on disposa! of gapital assels
Total Nonoperating RevenuesiExpenses)
Change infst Position
het Position [Deficlt) - Janusary 1

Net Position « December 31

Property and :

Liabiity Bental Information E

City Garage | Insurance insurance | Technology | Totals |
§ 1465778 B 188168 & 1FB 418 & 404306 § 2,126,668
1,024,508 560 8795 384,052 1415813
. 130080 004986 - 240,875
237,052 - - 237052
T.281,558 131,548 146,781 384 062 1,883,840
184,220 €619 11,835 20,254 232728
286 - - - 286

(7589 - - - {7.588;

(7.303) - - - {7,303
186917 8,619 11,635 20,254 225,425
2911388 1,204,828 546 (1268 4145 544
$ 30868255 ¢ 1211547 § 12,181 § 18,886 5 4340969

B4
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CITY OF MIEMASHA, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
internat Service Funds
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

Property and
Liakility Dental rformation
City Garags insurance insurance Tochnology Totals
Ligsh Flows from’ Operating Activities
Cash received from customers g o435 - % 17885 § - & 24 828
Cash regeived from City 1488 730 138,168 110,531 404,308 281740
Cash paid to suppliers {652,202} {134,701 {113,801} {210,755; 1,111,549
Cash paid to-empioyeas {417,111 {583 - 1148337} {580,476}
Net Cash Provided by Gperating S
Activities _ 412 475 3,380 4B 5 a4 204 474847
Cash Flows from Capital and Relgted Financing Aciviles
Acguisition of capita! sesats {448 163 - - - EAAR 103
Gash Flows from investing Sclivilies
interestand dividends received 288 - - ~ 284G
Chenge ir Cash ang Cesh Equivalenis {35402} 3,338 TEBE 44,244 2B.7656
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 135,885 176,088 4515 14,178 331,668
Cash and Cash Bquivalents - Decemiber 31 E 0483 & 180 327 & 186230 % 58367 & 358,432
Reconciligtion of Operating income 1o NetCash
Provided by Operating Activities;
Operating income 5 184220 B 6618 % 11,835 % 26254 § 222,788
Adjustments to reconcile operating income o
net cash provided by operaiing aclivities:
Depraciation 2R7.082 - - - 237,052
Changesin assats-and Rabiliies
Accounts receivabis 20.0006 - = - 20,000
Accounts pavable {38.797) {3,2801 2 980 23560 {18,137}
Accrued and pther liabilities
KetTash Provided by Operating Activities E 412475 & 3338 % 14615 3 44714 & 474 847
65
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAKCIAL REPORTING
AND OR COMPLIANCE ARD OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AR AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED N ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Torthe Honorable Mavor
and Members of the City Council
City of Menasha, Wisconsin

We have sudited. In accordance with the audiling stendards ‘generally sccepled In the United States of America
anc the standards appliceble to financial audits contained in Governmen! Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller Generai of the United States, the financial statements of the governmenta! activities, the business-type
activities. the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Menashz, Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended Decembar 3%, 2013, andtherefatad notes tothe
financial stalements, which collectively comprise the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's basic financial statemerits,
and have issued our report thereon which includet an emphasis ¢f malter paragragh s indicated on page 2
dated September 80, 2014.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audl of the financial statements, we congidered the City of Mengsha, Wisconsin's
internal control over financial reporling {internal controly io determing the sudit procedures that.are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, bid not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's infernal contrel. Accardingly,
we do notexprass an opinion on the sffectiveness of the Tity of Menasha, Wisconsin's inlemal control. :

A deficiency in.internal control exists when the design or opergtion of 2 gontrol does not allow management or
empioyees, n the normal course of performing thelr agsigned funclions, io prevent, or detect and correct
misstatemaents on o iimely basis. A materlal weakness is o deficiency, or & combination of deficiencies, i internal
gonirol such that there is & reasonable possibllity thal a meterial misstatement of the Clty's Tinarcial statements
will not be preventet, or detgcted and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or &
combination: of defisiencies, in intermal contro’ that is less severe than a materal weakness, yel important enough
o mert.attertion by those charged with govemancs.

Cur consideration of interma!l control was for the limisd purpose desoribed in the first paragraph of this seciion
anc was not designed 1o identity all deficiencies in internal contrgl that might be materisl weaknesses or
significart deficiencies amd therefore, material weaknesses or signfficant deficienties may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, furing our audit we did not identify any deficiendies in internal control that we
consider 1o be material weshknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not baen ideniified. We
did idertify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questionsd costs gs fems 2013-001 and 2073002, the! we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reesonable assurance sbout whether the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's financial siatements
are free of material misstatemeant, we performed tests of s compliance with cerlain provisions of laws,
reguiations, conracts and grant agreemeants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinien on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and sceordingly, we-do ol express such an opinion. The results of

ur fests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or cther matters that are reguired to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Menasha, Wisconsin’s Hesponse to Findings

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's respanse o the findings identified in cur audit s described in the accompanying
schedule-of findings and responses. City of Menasha, Wisconsin's response was ho! subjected 1o the auditing
procedures applied wvihe audit of the Tinancial statements and, accordingly, we exprass no opinion on i

Purpose of this Repart

The purpose ofthis reportis solely to describe the scope of ourtesting of interngl control and compliance and the
result of thatdesting, and not o provide an opinion onthe effectiveness of City of Menasha, Wisconsin's internal
control or on compliance. This Teport s an integral part of an audll performed in accordance with Government

Audifing Standards in considering the City of Menasha. Wisconsin's-internat control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not-suitable for any other purpose,

‘v

Certified Public Accountanis
Green Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2014
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FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT DN COMPLIANCE FOR EACH WAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE PROGRAM ARD DNINTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLISNCE

Tothe Honorable Mayor
and Members of the Clty Souncit
City of Menasha, Wisconsin

Report on Lompliance for Fach Wajor Fadersl and State Program

We have audited Clly of Menasha, Wisconsin's compliance with the dypes of compliance requeremenis desoribed
in the U S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB} Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Staie
Single Audit Guidsiines issusd by the Wisconsin Department of Administration thal could have s directand
material effect on each of City of Menasha, Wisconsin's major federal and siate programs for the year snded
December 31, 2013, City of Menasha, Wisconsin's major federal and siale programs are identified in the
summary of auditors” results seciion of the accompanving schaduls of findings. and questioned costs.

Managemen?'s Responsibiiity

Management is responsible for compliznce with the reguirements of Jaws; regulations, contracts, and granis
applicable 1o its federal and glate programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ciur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Menashz, Wisconsin's major federal
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance reguirements referred o above. We conducied
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the Unied Siates of Amenca;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issusd by the
Compirolier General of the United States, OME Circutar A-132, Andits of Siales. Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and the Stafte Single Audii Guidslines issued by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration, Those stendards, OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines require that we plan
and perform the audit 1o ebiain reasonable assurance about whether nencompiiance with the types of compliance
reguirements referred to above that could have 2 direct and material effeqt on 2 majorfederal or staie program
gocurred. Arvaudit includes examining, o & test basis, evidence about City of Menasha, Wisconsin's compiiance
with those requirements and perorming such ofher procedures as we considered necesssry in the
circumsiances.

We believe that gur audt provides & reasonable basls for our opinion on compliance ¥for sach mejor federat and
siaie program. However, our audit doss not providge o legsl determination of Ciy of Menasha, Wisconsim's
gompliance.

Opiinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

in our opinion, Gty of Menasha, Wisconsin complier, in sli materid respecis, with the types of compliance
requirements refarrad fo sbove that could have 2 direst and material effect on each of iis major federsl and siate
programs for the vear ended December 31, 2013,
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Report on Internat Contro! Over Compliance

Management of City of Menasha, Wisconsin is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the fypes of compliance requirements referred to above. in planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considerad City of Menasha, Wisconsin's internal control over compiiance with the
types of requirements that could have & direct and material effect on each major federal or state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of EXFessing an
opinion on compiiance for sach major feders! and state program and to test and report on internal contre! over
comphiance in accordance with OMB Circutar A-133 anc the Stale Single Audit Guidsiines, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion o the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not exprass
ar: opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Menasha, Wisconsin's internal contral over compliance.

A deficlency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of & contro! over complance
does not sliow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funclions, 1o
prevent, or detect and correct. noncompliance with 2 type of compliance requirement of & federal or state program
or a limely basis. A material weakness in internal controf over compliance is 2 deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, In internal control over compliance, such that there is & reasonabie possibility thst matertal
nencompliance with 2 dype of compliance recuirement of & federal or siate program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected. on z timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliznce s a
deficiency, or a combingtion of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
reguirement of & federal or state program that ig less severe han a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important.enough to merit atiention by those charged with governance.

Cur consigeration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose describad in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identiy all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were nal-identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
censider fo be material weaknesses. However, we ideniified z certain deficiency in internal control over
compliance, as described in the accompanying scheduie of findings and guestioned costs a8 itemn 2013-003 that
we consider 1o be 2 significant deficieney.

City of Menasha, Wisconsin's response to the internal control over compiiance findings identified in our audit is
describec in the accompanying schedule of prior year asudit findings and corrective action plan. City of Menasha,
Wisconsin's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingiy, we express no opinion on the response.

Tre purpose of this report on internal control over compliarice is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internzl control aver compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OME Circuler-A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Crganizations, and the State Single Audit Guidslines.
Accordingly, this report is ndtsuitable for any other purpose.

Ah e

Cartified Public Accountants
Graen Bay, Wisconsin
September 30, 2014
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Menasha, Wisconsin
Notes o the Schedules of Expenditures of Federzl Awartds and Siate Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

NOTE 4 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assitance and the
schedule of setlement of DHS Cost Reimbursement Award includes the federa! and state grant activity of the
City of Menasha, Wisconsin and are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information
ir these schedules 15 presented in accordance with'the requirements: of OMB Cireular A-183, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgarizations and the State Single Audii Guideiines. Thereiore. some
amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of.
the basic financial statemeants, '

NOTE B - OVERSIGHT AGENCIES

The UES. Department of Homelawd Security is the federal oversight agency for the City. The Wisconsin
Department of Natured Resourses is' the state oversight agency for the City.

73
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCORNSIN
Menasha, Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Section'! - Sunwnary of Auditors’ Resulis

Basic Financial Siatements

Type of auditors report issued: Lrernodified
Internal cantrol over financial reporting:
« hateriat weakness{es! identified?” NO
e Significant deficiency{ies) identified”? Yes
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noled? Mo
Federal-Awards and State Financial Assisiance
{nternal contral over major programs:
= Material weaknessiestidentified” Mo
= Significant deficiencies identified? Yes
Type of auditors report issued on compliance for major programs Unmadified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required:io-be reported
in accordance with Section 510{a} of CircularA-1337 Vs
Any sudit findings disciosed that are reguired fo be reported in
accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelines? Yes
{dentification of major federal and stale programs;
| CFDA Number i Name of Federal Program ;
56.488 Captalization Grants forClean Water Siate Revoiving Funds
i “State I Number L Name of State Pragram
370.085 Parl Develupmeiit Grant
At thrashold used to-determinge between Type & and Type B programs:
Federal : $300,000
Siale 100,000
Audites gualified s a lew-risk audites: Mo

74

ADMINISTRATION COMM 10/6/14 PAGE 87



CITY OF MENASHA, WISCOKNSIN
tMenashg, Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Yesar BEnded December 31, 2013

Section i - Basic Financial Statement Findings

Finding No.

Controt Deficiencies

2138001

Condition:

Criteria:

Ciouse:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Braparationof Annual Financial Report

Current City staff mamntains accounting racords  which reflest the City's financial
transactions; however, preparing the Citv's annual financial report. mduding note
disclosures, involves the selection and application of specific ascounting principies which
would require additiona! experience and knowledge, The City contracts with us and our
knowiedge of applicable accounting principles, financial siatement formats, and note
disclosures to assist in the preparation of the annual financial reportin an efficient manner,

The preperation and review of the annual financial report by staff with expertise in financisl
raporting is an internal control intended 1o prevent, deisct end gorrect 2 potental omission
grmissiatement in the financial siatements or notes,

City management has determined that the additional costs associaied with raining-staff to
become experienced in applicable accounting principles and note disclosures outweigh
the derived benefils,

Without aur involvement, the City may not be able to complately prepare an annigl
financial report in accorcance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United
States of America,

We recommend the Tity continue reviewing the annual financiat repori, While it may not
be cost beneficial 1o train additional -staff 1o completely prepare the report, 2 thorough

review of this informaticn by appropriate steff 6f the Clly is necessary ioobtain a complete
and edeguste anderstending of the Tity's annusl financial report.

75
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSINM.
Menasha, Wisconsin
Schedule of Fingings and Questioned Costs {Continued)
For the Year bnded December 31, 2013

Section U - Basic Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

Finding Me. Control Deficlencies
2TE-00E Capital fsset Additions
Condiion:  City staff provides us with the current vear asset additions and disposais. the method and
rate of depreciation and the salvage value of the assets. From this information, we assist
the City in recording the capilal asset addiions and disposals and calculating the annual
depreciation expense.
Criteriz; The mantenance of detailled capital asse! records s an indernal control intended {o
safeguard assets and o preveni 2 potenbab misstatement inthe financial records.
Cause:  The Cily does not have 2 system in placeio idenlify capital asseat transactions thioughout
the yaar.
Effent; The City could have capilal asssis transactions which are not refiected in the detaiiad
capiial records and the annual financial report.
Recommeandation:  We recommend the City develop a system o identify capital asset.additions and disposals

throughout the year. Many governments of your size identify aew additions at the time this
related invoice is paid and maintain g copy of the invoice for us:

78
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
fMenasha, Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs {Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Section lil - Federal Award and State Financial- Assistance Findings

Finding Mo, fatarnat Controt Deficleiicies
34008 Financial Reporting for Federal and Siate Financlal Assistance
Federal CFA#E. Al federal programs.

StatgiDs  All siate programs.

Condition: OMB Circular A4-133 and the Stafe Single Auglt Guidelines requires the Uity to prapars
appropriate financial statements. including the scheduiss of expendilures of federal
awarcs and state financiel assistance. While the currernt staff of the City maintain
financiat records supporting amounits reported inthe schedules of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assisiance, the City contracts with Schenck ‘o compile the data
from these recorgs and assist inthe preparation of the single audit report for the City.

Criteriaz - Having siafl wilh expertise In federal and state financial reporting prepare the City's single
audit report s an ntemal control infended o prevent, detect anc correct a potential
misstatement in the schedules of expenditures of federal wards angd siate financial
assistance, oracsompanying notes te the scheduie.

Causg:  The additionat costs associated with hinng staff suffisiently experienced io prepare the
City's single audit report, including the additional fraining fime, outweigh the derived
benefits,

Effect: The Ciiv could receive federal or siste grant awards which are ngt included in the
accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Sate Financlal
Assistange.

Recommanistion;  Werecommend Clly persorne! continue reviewing the City's single audit-repert. Whike it

may mot be cost beneficial o hing additional ste to prepare these items, a thorough
review ¢ this information by approprisiestafl of the Tty is necessary 1o ensure all federal
and state financial assistance programs are properdly reported in the City's single audit
raport,

T
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCORSIN
Menasha. Wisconsin
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs {Conlinued)
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

Section IV - Dther lssues

Does the auditors’ report or the notes o the financial statement include
disclosure with regard o substantial doubt 850 the audilee's ability o
continue as g going concern” Yes X No

Doeas the audil report show audit issues lie., matenal non-compiiance,
non-material non-compliance, questioned cosis, material weakness,
significant deficiency, management letter commaeant, excess ravenus or
excess reserve] related to grardsicontracts with funding agencies that
require audits to be in accordance with the State Single Audit Guidelings:

Department of Healih Services

A Yes ~ No
Department of Justice : X Yes .
Department of Natural Rescurces o Yes _ Mo
Was & Management Letter or other documend conveying audii comiments _
iEsued as z resull of this audit? x Yes o
0 L 4
L b o
Name and signature of shareholder At M - LI
David L. Maccoux, CPA
Date-of report September 30, 2014
78
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CITY OF MENASHA, WISCONSIN
Menasha, Wiscansin
Schedule of Prior Year Audif Findings and Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Status-of Prior Year Audit Findings

The findings noted in the 2012 Schedule of Findings and Responses has been reported to the proper stete
agencies. Management continues {o’believe the cost to hire additional sieff o eliminate the control deficiency

identified as. 2012-07%, 201202 and 2012-03 outweigh the benefits 1o be recaived.

finangial reper orior {0 issuance.

Lormective Action Plan for udit Findings

Finding dNo. Cwrrgchve fetion Plan

Zo15-001 Freparation of Anmual Firangial Repoit
Management beileves that the cost ol hirlng addiional staff o prepare yvear and GASE 34
conversion entries and {o prepare financial reports outweighs the benefils {o be received,
Management has reviewed financial staterments and other information prior to issuance of
the report,

2013002 Capital Asset dditions
stanagement believes the cost for additional staft fime o maintein the capital asse!
records outweigh the benefis to be received, Management has eviewsd capiial asset
records priorio issuanece of the report.

2O13003 Financial Reporting for Federal and State Fingnoial Assisfance

Management belteves the cost of additional staft time and fraining:to prepare these llems
autweigh the benefils 1o be recaved. Management has reviewsd single audli reports mad
other information prior o the issuance of the report.

79
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JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
WINNEBAGO COUNTY 911 EMERGENCY SYSTEM

WHEREAS, Winnebago County and the municipalities located within the
boundaries of Winnebago County have implemented an Emergency 911 System for the
purposes of providing emergency services to residents and visitors of these
municipalities, including fire fighting, law enforcement, ambulance, medical and other
emergency services; and

WHEREAS, Sec. 256.35(9), Wis. Stats. "Joint Powers Agreement”, requires that
in implementing a 911 system as has been done in Winnebago County, municipalities
shall annually enter into a Joint Powers Agreement, which Agreement shall be
applicabie on a daily basis and which shall provide that if an emergency services
vehicle is dispatched in response to a request through the Winnebago County 911
System, such vehicle shall render its services to the persons needing the services,
regardiess of whether the vehicle is operating outside the vehicle’s normal jurisdictional
boundaries.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, agreements, and
conditions contained herein, it is hereby jointly agreed between Winnebago County and
the City of Menasha, municipality”, as follows:

1. That effective December 1, 2014, this Agreement shall, thereafter, be applicable
on a daily basis from said date through November 30, 2015.

2. That if an emergency services vehicle operated by the municipality, or operated
by an agency with which the municipality contracts for that particular emergency
service, is dispatched in response to a request through the Winnebago County
Emergency 911 System, such vehicle (whether owned and operated by the
municipality or by the agency) shall render its services to the persons needing
the services, regardless of whether the vehicle is operating outside the vehicle’s
normai jurisdictional (or as defined by contract) boundaries.

3. That a Winnebago County Communications and information System Advisory
Committee shall be established to develop and recommend policy and
procedures for emergency services communications and public safety records
management issues in Winnebago County. A User’s Guide that was developed
in 1994 has been updated as necessary, and includes directives and guidelines
for the proper use of E911 communication devices (which may include, but not
be limited to, radios, computers, mobile data devices and pagers). Violation of
User Guide directives could result in disciplinary action being imposed by the
employing agency. The committee will be charged to effectively recommend
equipment/software purchases and resource allocation with the authority to
develop sub-committees as needed to accomplish that task. The committee may
develop special ad-hoc, advisory task forces to research regional communication
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network(s) with neighboring public safety departments or other County E911
Systems. The Advisory Committee will report to the County Executive and
service that position in an advisory nature. Membership on the Advisory
Committee shall consist of 9 representatives (appointed by the County
Executive) from the following:

4 — Police Agency (separate departments) Representatives (normally the Police
Chief or histher designee).

4 — Fire Agency (separate departments) Representatives (normally the Fire Chief
or his/her designee).

1 — Emergency Government Representative.

The Advisory Committee shall elect one Chair and Vice-Chair each year
commencing in January.

. That a copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the State Department of Justice,

as required by Sec. 146.70 (9)(c), Wis. Stats.

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
By: Wﬁx/j%mﬁ Date: ?}/j’ﬁj//(/
Winnebago County Executive '
Mark L. Harris
or_ Nl e 215)14
/County Clerk
Susan T. Ertmer
CITY OF MENASHA
By: Date:
Mayor
By: Date:
City Clerk
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WE-AD AMENDRENT TO LISTING CONTRACT

It is agreed that the Listing Sontract dated Bpertl 19 , 2013 . betwaen the untersigned,

for sale of the propery known as (Street Address/Descrition) BUZ Airpeee el

i3 the 255 by of Menashe . oy of

. Hinnebaon  Wigeonein s amendsd ag Iollows:

LF The list price s changed from § ok

B The axpiration date of the contract is changed from midnight Sertember 25 C20%4 0
riicinight . September 25 20185

L3 The following liems are {added to)(deieted from) | STHIKE ONE  the fist of properly 1o be includsd In the s
piE:

i Cber

ALL OTHER TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT AND ANY PRIORE AMENDMENTS REMAIN UNCHANGED.

i

CAUTION: Agenis {sslespersong) for Broker {firm) do not bave the authority fo enter info & mutusf
apresment o terminsle & Osling conlrect, amend the commdssion amount or shorien the ferm of 2

Heting contract, withou? the writien congent of the Agentis]’ supervising broles.

Howsark Scubb Pfeffarle {2
Broker/Firm &, Seller’s Signature £ Liate #
v Prit name b City of Menashs

i i P
@M 1€ A T e e M

?
Date & Seller's Sgnature & Late &
Privt mame p Bishaerd §. HEndghi, EVP Ssoy. rint name » Greg Keil, Direotor

Mewsark Grabb Plefferks 200 £ Weshingion 5t 812 24 Apploion, Wi 549 S.5468

Phone: FIG068-4 100 Fax: G20-068.400 Michas! Piifinic i} Adepott
Freducet with Tpform by ziploply FOY0 Fiheen Mils Foad, Fraser, Mithipen 40008 woww zislogiz oom
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Grubb & ElHs - Flefferle

Approved by the Wisconsin Department of Regalation and Licensing Page 1 of 5, WBE-3
10-1-38 (Optional Use Date)  $-1-09 (Mandatory Use Date)

WO~ O R -

[___WB-3 VACANT LAND LISTING CONTRACT - EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO SELL i

SELLER GIVES BROKER THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO SELL THE PROPERTY ON THE FOLLOWING TERMS:

B PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: Streef address is: _ 901 hirport Road

in Section in the Citw of Meonasha . Loty of Winnebaogo \
Wisconsin. Insert additional desoription, if any, at fines 254-261 or attach as an addendum per Ines 262-264.

m LIST PRICE: one Eundeed Twsive Thousand Doltars {3 112 000,00 H

B INCLUDED IN LIST PRICE: Seller is including m the iist price the Properly_all Fixtures not exciuded on [nes 1 B'ﬂé?:
and ihe following items: None }

@ NOT INCLUDED IN LIST PRICE: CAUTION: identify Fixiures to be exchided by Seller or which are rented and wil
continue to be owned by the lessor. (See lines 212-217): Hone

At A A e Sl s o i o e s o e 5 A o TR i e g Ao S e . o b

# GOVERNMENTAL AND CONSERVATION PROGRAMS: Selier represehts that all or some of the Property is
enrofled in the following governmental conservation, farmland, environmental, land use or use restricting programs,
agresmeanis or conservation easements, (county, state or faderal): /A

USE VALUE ASSESSMENT: Seller répresents that (all-er-some-of-the-Properyy (none of the Property) | STRIKE
OME | has been assessed as agriculfural property under use value law.
B SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller represents that the Property is subject to the following special assessments:
None .
@ SPECIAL ZONING, LAND USE OR DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTIONS: Seller represents that the Property s
subject 0 the following special zoning, lang use, development restrictions or other conditions affecting the Property:
# MARKETING: Seller authorizes and Broker agrees 1o use reasonable efforis to orocure & buyer for the Property.
Selier agrees that Broker may market Seller's personal property identified on lines 7-8 during the term of this Listing.
Broker's marketing may include: 8igns, Leop¥et, websites, direct or e-mailings, broker networking

Broker may advertise the following special financing and incentives offered by Sefler H/A _ _
. Seller has a duty 1o cooperate with Broker's marketing
efforts. See lnes B4-90 regarding Broker's role as markstng agent and Seflers duly 1o notify Broker of any potential
buyer known 10 Seller. Seller agrees that Broker may market other properdies during the term of this Listing.

B CCCUPANCY: Unless otherwise provided, Seller agrees fo give buyer socupancy of the Property gt time of closing.
Unless otherwise agreed, Seller agress fo have the Propery free of all debrs and personal propery excent for
personal property belanging to current tenants, sold to buyer or teft with buver's consani.

# COQOPERATION, ACCESS TO PROPERTY OH OFFER PRESENTATION: The parties agree that Broker will work
and cooperate with cther brokers in marketing the Property, Including trokers from other firms acting as subagents
{agents from other companies engaged by Broker - See lines 148151} and brokers representing buyers. Cooperation
inciudes providing access o the Properly for showing purposas end presenting offers and other proposals from these
brokers 10 Seller. Note any brokers with whom Broker shall not cooperate, any brokers or buvers who shall net be
allowed to attend showings, and the specific terms of offers which should not be submitied to Seller: ¥/2 =

CAUTION. Limiing Broker's cooperation with ofher brokers may reduce the marketability of the Property.

B EXCLUSIONS: Al persons who may acauire an interest in the Property as & Protecied Buyer under a prict histing
corfract are exciuded from this Listing to the extent of the prior broker's legal fights, uniess otherwise agresd 10 In wiiling,
Within seven days of the date of this Listing, Seller agrees (o defiver o Broker 2 written list of ail such prospective buvers.
The following other buysrs are excluded fromthis Listinguntil | commm e i [INSERT DATEL

Threse other buyers are no longer excluded from this Listing after the specified date unless, on or before the specified date,
Seller has either accepted an offer from the buyer or sold the Property to the buyer.

8 COMPENSATION TO CTHERS.: Broker offers the following commission to cooperating brokers: 4% o other
brokers . (Exceptions if any) ot sl it o o oo e o e e e e

B COMMISSION: Broker's commission shall be . Ses Line 254

Selier shall pay Broker's commission, which shall be earned, if, during the ferm of this Listing:

1) Seller seils or accepts an offer which creates an enforcikable contract for the sale of all or any part of the Property;

2) Seller grants an option to purchase all or any part of the Property which is subseguently exercised;

3) Seller exchanges or enters into a binding exchange agreemeant on all or any part of the Property;

4} A transaction occurs which causes an effective change in ownership or control of al or any part of the Property; or

Grubb & Ellis - Plefferle 200 E Washington 8¢ Ste 24 Appleton, W1 54011-5468
Phone: 920-968-4700 Fax: 920-968-4300 tichael Pfefferle S01 Aidrport Road

Produced with ZipForm® by ziplogix 18070 Fifleen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026  www zink.ogix.com
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trage 2 of 5, WB-3

5} A buyer is procured for the Property by Broker, by Seller, or by any other person, at ne less than the price and on
substantially the same terms set forth in this Listing and in the standard provisions of the current WE-13 VACANT
LAND GFFER TO PURCHASE, even if Seller does not accept this buyer's offer. (See lines 222-225 regarding
procurement.}

A percentage commission, if applicable, shall be calculated based on the purchase price if commission is eamned under 1 }
or 2} above, or calculated based on the list price under 3), 4) or 5). A percentage commission shail be calculated on the
fair market value of the Property exchanged under 3} if the exchange involves less than the entire Property or on the fair
market value of the Property to which an effective change in ownership or confrol takes place, under 4) i the transaction
invoives less than the entire Property. Once earned, Broker's commission is due and payable in full at the earlier of ¢losing
or the date set for closing, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Broker's commission shall be earmed if, during the term of
the Listing, one owner of the Property sells, conveys, exchanges or options an interest in ali or any part of the Property to
another awner, except by divorce judgment.
NOTE: A sale, option, exchange or procurement of a buyer far 2 portion of the Property does not terminate the Listing as io
any remaining Property.
@ EXTENSION OF LISTING: The Listing term is extended for a period of one year as to any Protected Buyer. Upon
receipt of a written request from Seller or a broker who has listed the Properly, Broker agrees to promptly deliver to
Seller & written list of those buyers known by Broker to whom the extension pericd applies. Should this Listing be
terminated by Seller prior to the expiration of the term stated in this Listing, this Listing shall be extended for Pratected
Buyers, on the same terms. for one year after the Listing is terminated,
B TERMINATION OF LISTING: Neither Seller nor Broker has the legal right to unilaterally terminate this Listing absent a
material breach of contract by the other party. Seller understands that the parties to the Listing are Saller and the Broker
(firm). Agents (salespersons) for Broker (firm) do not have the authorily to enter inte a mutual agreement to terminate the
Listing, amend the cornmission amount or shorten the term of this Listing, without the written consent of the agent(s)’
supervising broker. Seller and Broker agree that any termination of this Listing by either party before the date stated on
line 269 shall be indicated to the cther party in writing and shall not be effective until delivered to the other Party in
accordance with ines 206-211. CAUTION: Early termination of this Listing may be a breach of contract, causing the
terminating party {0 potentially be liable for damages.
B SELLER COOPERATION WITH MARKETING EFFORTS: Sefler agress {o cooperate with Broker in Broker's
marketing efforts and to provide Broker with ali records, documents and other material in Seller's possession or control
which are required in connection with the sale. Seller authorizes Broker to do those acts reascnably necessary to
effect a sale and Sefler agrees to cooperate fully with these efforts which may inciude use of a multiple listing service,
frternet advertising ar a lockbox system on Property. Seller shall promptly notify Broker in writing of any potential buyers
with whom Seller negotiates during the term of this Listing and shall promptly refer all persons making inguiries
cancerning the Property to Broker.

m LEASED PROPERTY: if Property is currently leased and lease(s) will extend beyond closing, Seller shall assign

Seller's rights under the lease(s) and transfer all security deposits and prepaid rents (subject to agreed upon prorations)

thereunder to buyer at closing. Seller acknowledges that Seller remains fiable under the lease(s) unless released by

tenant(s). CAUTION: Seller should consider obtaining an indemnification agreement from buyer for liabilities under the
lease(s) unless released by tenants,

E BROKER DISCLOSURE TO CLIENTS:

UNDER WISCONSIN LAW, A BROKER OWES CERTAIN DUTIES TO ALL PARTIES TO A TRANSACTION:

{(a) The duty to provide brokerage services to vou fairly and honestly.

(b} The duty to exercise reasonable skill and care in providing brokerage services to you.

{c} The duty to provide you with accurate information about market conditions within a reasonable tirne if you request

it, unless disclosure of the information is prohibited by law.

{(d} The duly to disclose fo you in writing certain material adverse facts about a property, unless disclosure of the

information is prohibited by law. (See Lines 218-221)
(e) The duty to protect your confidentiality. Unless the law requires it, the broker will not disclose your confidential
information or the confidential information of other parties. (See Lines 157-173)

{fi  The duty to safeguard trust funds and other property the broker holds.

(g) The duly, when negotiating, to present contract propesals in an objective and unbiased mannet and disclose the

advantages and disadvantages of the proposals.

B BECAUSE YOU HAVE ENTERED INTO AN AGENCY AGREEMENT WITH A BROKER, YOU ARE THE

BROKER'S CLIENT. A BROKER OWES ADDITIONAL DUTIES TO A CLIENT:

(8) The broker will provide, at your reguest, information and advice on real estate matters that affect your transaction,

unless you reiease the broker from this duty.

(b} The breker must provide you with all material facts affecting the transaction, not just adverse facts.

(¢) The broker will fulfill the broker's obiigations under the agency agreement and fulfill your lawful requests that are

within the scope of the agency agreement.

(d} The broker will negotiate for you, unless you release the broker from this duty.

(e} The broker will not place the broker's interests ahead of your interests. The broker will not, unless required by
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law, give informaticn or advice to other parties who are not the broker's clients, if giving the information or advice is

confrary {o your interests,
() 1f you become invoived in a transaction in which another parly is also the broker's client {a "multiple representation

refationship”), different duties rmay apply.
# MULTIPLE REPRESENTATION RELATIONSHIPS AND DESIGNATED AGENCY:
® A multiple representation relationship exists if a broker has an agency agreement with more than one client whe is a
party in the same transaction. In a multiple representation relationship, if all of the broker's ciients in the transaction
consent, the broker may provide services to the clients through designated agency.
# Designated agency means that different salespersons employed by the broker will negotiate on behalf of you and the
other client or clients in the transaction, and the broker's duties will remain the same. Fach salesperson will provide
information, opinions, and advice to the client for whom the salesperson is negotiating, to assist the client in the
negotiations. Each client will be able to receive information, opinions, and advice that will assist the client, even if the
information. opinicns, or advice gives the client advantages in the negofiations over the broker's other clients. A
salesperson will not reveal any of your confidential information to another party unlass required to do so by law,
| if a designated agency relationship is not in effect you may authorize or reject & multinle representation relationship.
If you authorize a multiple representation relationship the broker may provide brokerage services to more than one
client in a transaction but neither the broker nor any of the broker's salespersons may assist any chent with
information, opinicns, and advice which may favor the interests of one client over any other client. If you do not
consent to a multiple representation refationship the broker will not be allowed fo provide brokerage services to more
than one client in the fransaction,
INITIAL ONLY ONE OF THE THREE LINES BELOW:;

| consent 1o designated agency.
| consent to multiple representation relationships, but | do not consent to designated agency,

| reject multiple representation relationships.
NOTE: YOU MAY WITHDRAW YOUR CONSENT TC DESIGNATED AGENCY OR TO MULTIPLE REPRESENTATION

RELATIONSHIPS BY WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE BROKER AT ANY TIME. YOUR BROKER IS REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE TO

YOU IN YOUR AGENCY AGREEMENT THE COMMISSION OR FEES THAT YOU MAY OWE TO YOUR BROKER. IF YOU HAVE

ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT THE COMMISSION OR FEES THAT YOU MAY OWE BASED UPON THE TYPE OF AGENCY

RELATIONSHIP YOU SELECT WITH YOUR BROKER YCU SHOULD ASK YOUR BROKER BEFCRE SIGNING THE AGENCY

AGREEMENT.

® SUBAGENCY: The broker may, with your authorization in the agency agreement, engage other brokers who assist

your broker by providing brokerage services for your benefit. A subagent will not put the subagenfs own interests

ahead of your interests. A subagent will not, unless required by law, provide advice or opinions to other parties if doing

s0 Is contrary o your interests,

PLEASE REVIEW THIS INFORMATION CAREFULLY. A broker or salesperson can answer your guestions about

brokerage services, but if you need legal advice, tax advice, or a professional home inspection, contact an

attorney. tax advisor, or home inspector. This disclosure is required by section 452,135 of the Wisconsin statutes

and is for information only. It is a plain language summary of a broker's duties to you under section 452.133 {2} of

the Wisconsin statutes,

B CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE TO CLIENTS: Broker will keep confidential any inforrnation given to Broker in

confidence, or any information obtained by Broker that he or she knows a reasonable person would want to be kept

confidential, unless the information must be disclosed by law or you authorize Broker to disclose particular information.

Broker shalt continue io keep the information confidential after Breker is no jonger providing brokerage services to you.

The following information is required to be disclosed by law;

1} Material adverse facts, as defined in section 452.01 (5g) of the Wisconsin statutes {lines 218-221).

2) Any facts known by the Broker that contradict any information inciuded in a writtery inspection report on the property
or real estate that is the subject of the fransaction.

To ensure that the Broker is aware of what specific information you consider confidential, you may list that information

below {see lings 168-170). At a later time, you may also provide the Broker with other information you consider to be

confidential.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: None

NON-CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (The following may be disciosed By Broker): None

B SELLER'S DISCLOBURE REPORT: Wisconsin Administrative Code Chapler RL 24 feglires listing bDrokers 1o
make inquiries of the Seller on the condition of the Property antd to request that Seller provide = wrilien response o
Broker's inquiry. Seller agrees to complete a seller's disclosure report to the best of Seller's kriowledge. Seller agrees:
to amend the report should Seller learn of any defect(s) after completion of the report but before acceptance of a buyer's
offer to purchase. Seller authorizes Broker to distribute the report fo all interested parfies and their agents ingulring
about the Property and acknowledges that Broker has a duty fo disclose all maierial adverse facts asrequired by-law.
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B SELLER REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING DEFECTS: Seller represents to Broker that as of the date of this
Listing, if a seller's disclosure report or other form of written response to Broker's inguiry regarding the condition of the
Property has been made by the Seller, the Seller has no notice or knowiedge of any defects affecting the Property other
tnan those noled on Seller's disclosure report or written response.
WARNING: IF SELLER REPRESENTATIONS ARE INCORRECT OR INCOMPLETE, SELLER MAY BE LIABLE FOR
DAMAGES AND COSTS,
® OPEN HOUSE AND SHOWING RESPONSIBILITIES: Seller is aware that there is a potential risk of injury, damage
and/or theft involving persons attending an "individual showing” or an “"open house." Seller accepts responsibifity for
preparing the Properly to minimize the likelihood of injury, damage and/or loss of personal property. Seller agrees to
hold Eroker harmless for any losses or liability resulting from personal injury, property damage, or theft ecourring
during “individua! showings” or "open houses” other than those caused by Broker's negligence or intentional
wrongdoing. Sefier acknowledges that individual showings and open houses may be conducted by licensees other
than Broker, that appraisers and inspectors may conduct appraisals and inspections without being accompanied by
Broker or other licensees, and that buyers or licensees may be present at all inspections and testing and may
photograph or videotape Property unless otherwise provided for in additional provisions at lines 254-261 or in an
addendum per nes 262-264.
® DEFINITIONS:
ADVERSE FACT: An "adverse fact’ means any of the following:
(&) A condition or occurrence that is generally recognized by a competent licensee as doing any of the following:
1} Significantly and adversely affecting the value of the Property;
23 significantly reducing the structural integrity of improvements to real estate; or
33 presenting a significant heaith risk to occupants of the Property.
{b) Information that indicates that a pany to a transaction is not able to or does not intend to meet his or her
obligations under a contract or agreement made conceming the transaction.
DEADLINES - DAYS: Deadlines expressed as a number of "days” from an event are calcufated by excluding the day the
event occurred and by counting subsequent calendar days:
DELIVERY; Delivery of documents or written notices related to this Listing may only be accomplished by:
1) giving the document or wrilten nofice personally 1o the party;
2} depositing the document or written notice postage or fees prepaid or charged to an aceount in the U.S. Mail or a
commercial delivery system, addressad to the parly, at the party's address (See lines 275, 281 and 287 ):
3) slectronically transmilting the documenit or written notice to the party's fax number {See Jines 277, 283 and 289.); or,
4) as otherwise agreed in additional provisions of iines 254-261 or in an addendum fo this Listing.
FIXTURES: A "fixture” is an item of property which is physicafly attached to or so closely associated with land so as to
be treated as part of the real estate, including, without limitation, physically attached items not easily removable
without damage to the premises, flems specifically adapted to the prefnises, and itefns customarily treated as fixtures,
including. but not limited o, ali: pereninial crops: garden bulbs; planis; shrubs and trees; and fences,; storage buildings
on permanent foundations and docks/plers on permanent foundations,
CAUTION: Annual crops are not part of the purchase price unless otherwise agreed.
MATERIAL ADVERSE FACT: A "material adverse fact” means an adverse fact that a parly indicates is of such
significance, or that is generally recognized by & compeient licensee as being of such significance o a reasonable
party, that it affects or would affect the party's decision to enter into a contract or agreement concerning a transaction
or affacts or would affect the party's decision about the terms of such a contract or agreement,
PROCURE: A buyer is procured when, during the term of the Listing, an enforceable confract of sale is entered inio
tetween the Seller and the buyer or when a ready, willing and able buyer submits to the Selier or the Listing Broker a written
offer at the price and on substanfially the terms specified in this Listing. A buyer is ready, willing and able when the buyer
submitting the written offer hias the ability to complete the buyer's obligations under the written offer. (See lines 57-60)
PROPERTY: Unless otherwise stated, "Properly” fheans the reai estale described at lines 2-4.
PROTECTED BUYER: Means a buyer who personaily, or through any person acting for such buyer; 1) delivers to Seller or
Broker a written offer to purchase, exchange or option on the Property during the term of this Listing; 2) negotietes directly
with Selier by discussing with Seller the potential terms upon which buyer might acquire an interest in the Property; or 3)
attends an individual showing of the Property or discussss with Brokerior coeperating brokers the potential terms upon
which buyer might acquire an interest in the Property, but only if Broker delivers the buyer's name to Seller, in writing, no
later than three days after the expiration of the Listing. The requirement in 3), to deliver the buyer's name to Seller in writing,
may be fulfilled as foliows: &) If the Listing is effective only as to certain individuals who are identified in the Listing, by the
identification of the individuais in the Listing; or, b} if a buyer has requested that the buyer's identity remain confidential, by
delivery of a written notice identifying the broker with whom the buyer negotiated and the date(s) of any showings or other
negotiations.
B NON-DISCRIMINATION: Seller and Broker agree that they will not discriminate against any prospective buyer on
acceunt of race, color, sex, sexual orientation as defined in Wisconsin Statutes, Section 111.32 (13m), disability,
religion. national origin, marital status, fawful source of income, age, ancestry, familial status, or in any other untawful

manner.
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241 m EARNEST MONEY: If Broker holds trust funds in connection with the transaction, they shai be retained by Broker in
242 Broker's trust account. Broker may refuse to hold earnest money or other trust funds. Should Broker hold the eamest money
243 Jeller authorizes Broker to disburse the earnest money as directed in a written earnest money disbursement agreement
244 signed by or ¢n behalf of all parties having an interest in the trust funds. If the transaction fails to close and the earnest
245 money is disbursed to Sefler, then upon disbursement to Selier the eamest money shali be paid first to reimburse Broker for
246 cash advances made by Broker on behalf of Seller and one half of the balance, but not in excess of the agreed commission,
247 shall be paid t© Broker as Broker's full commission in connection with said purchase transaction and the batance shall betong
248 to Sefier. This payment to Broker shall not terminate this Listing.

249 @ UTILITY AVAILABILITY: Seller represents that the following utility connections are located as follows: (e.g. at the
250 ot fine, on the property, across the street, unknown, etc. ) electricity to the site ygas . to the site ¢

251 municipal sewer ___to the site  :municipalwater  to the site . telephone _to the site
252 other nones . GTRIKE AND COMPLETE AS APPLICABLE | -

255 m ZONING: Seller represents thaf the property 1s zoned. -1 General Commercial .
254 @ ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS: 1. Mike Pfefferle will not De charging 2 commission Lo Li8b. Aleo;
255 Pfefferle Companies Brokers will not be paid a commission. Outside Brokers will be paid ..
256 4%. A Phase 1 Environmental assessments shall be made available to all purchasures,
257 :
268 2. See atrtached addendunm
259 . R
260
261 -
262 m ADDENDA: The attached:addenda None

263 e '

264 ' _ isfare made part of this Listing,
265 m NOTICE ABOUT SEX OFFENDER REGISTRY: You may obfain information about the sex offender registry and
266 persons registered with the registry by conlacting the Wisconsin Department of Corrections on the Internet at
267 http:hwww. widocolfenders org or by telephone at (608)240-5830.

268 m TERM OF THE CONTRACT: From the 25th dayof._ . Mareh . ... 02013 ;
269 up to and including midnightofthe ... 25¢h ——  day of i March o L2014

270 w READING/RECEIPT: BY SIGNING BELOW, SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS
271 LISTING CONTRACT AND THAT HE/SHE HAS READ ALL FIVE PAGES AS WELL AS ANY ADDENDA AND ANY
272 OTHER DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTG THE LISTING.,

273 (x) /’WMMMZ/ % 7/
s

274 Seller's Signature &
140 Main 8t.

278 Menasha, WI 54952

276 Sellers Address 4

City of Menasha
Print Name Here, &

4. L 0%

(G20 8873600 . _
Seller's Phone# &

277 . gkeildel menasha.wi.us
278 Seller's Fax# & Sefter's BE-Mail Address &

279 ()
280 Seller's Signature &

Print Name Here: 4 a ' Date &

281
282 Seller's Addrass 4

Salier's Phone # 4

283
284 Seller's Fax# 4 Selier's E-Mail Address 4

Richard J. Knight, .
285 {xy 4 : df EVE, Sacy Grubb & Eilis | Pfefferle 3- X&D [ 3

286 Agemnt for Broker & ~ 7 Print Name Here: A Broker/Firm Name 4 Date &

200 BE. Washington 8t.

287 pprpleton, WI 54911 (920} 96B-4700
288 Broker/Firm Address & Broker/Firm Phone # 4
28% (920)968~4300 nikeplgepwi.com

290 Broker/Firm Fax # 4 Broker/irm E-Mail Address 4
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Addendum A

801 Airport Road
Menasha, Wi

Property is being sold subject to the following conditions:

Within 18 months of closing, purchaser must begin construction of a building or
structure in compliance with city erdinances and other applicable laws and for a
permitted purposed under city ordinances. Consfruction must be completed with
1 vear after construction begins.
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